GEORGIA GULF CORP /DE/ Form DEFM14A December 06, 2012 Table of Contents

**Index to Financial Statements** 

# UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

**WASHINGTON, DC 20549** 

## **SCHEDULE 14A**

(RULE 14a-101)

INFORMATION REQUIRED IN PROXY STATEMENT

## **SCHEDULE 14A INFORMATION**

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934

(Amendment No. 4)

þ Filed by the Registrant" Filed by a Party other than the RegistrantCheck the appropriate box:

- " Preliminary Proxy Statement
- Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
- b Definitive Proxy Statement
- " Definitive Additional Materials
- " Soliciting Material Pursuant to §240.14a-12

# **GEORGIA GULF CORPORATION**

(Name of Registrant as Specified in its charter)

		(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if Other than the Registrant)
Pay	ment	of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):
		ree required.  computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.
	(1)	Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:
	(2)	Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
	(2)	Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies.
	(3)	Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
	(4)	Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:

	(5)	Total fee paid:
þ	Fee p	paid previously with preliminary materials.
	Chec was j	ck box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.
	(1)	Amount Previously Paid:
	(2)	Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
	(3)	Filing Party:

(4) Date Filed:

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

#### EXPLANATORY NOTE

This proxy statement relates to the special meeting of stockholders of Georgia Gulf Corporation ( Georgia Gulf ) to approve the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf s common stock in the merger (the Merger ) of Grizzly Acquisition Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation ( Merger Sub ), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Georgia Gulf, with and into Eagle Spinco Inc., a Delaware corporation ( Splitco ), a wholly-owned subsidiary of PPG Industries, Inc. ( PPG ), whereby the separate corporate existence of Merger Sub will cease and Splitco will continue as the surviving company and as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Georgia Gulf. Prior to the Merger, PPG will transfer the assets and liabilities related to the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business, including certain subsidiaries of PPG, to Splitco or one of its subsidiaries. In exchange therefor, PPG will receive all the issued and outstanding common stock of Splitco, the cash proceeds of approximately \$225.0 million from the Term Facility (as defined below) and the Debt Securities (as defined below) in an aggregate principal amount of approximately \$675.0 million. Splitco is a newly formed, direct wholly-owned subsidiary of PPG that was organized specifically for the purpose of effecting the Separation (as defined below). Splitco has engaged in no business activities to date and it has no material assets or liabilities of any kind, other than those incident to its formation and those incurred in connection with the Transactions (as defined below). Splitco has filed a registration statement on Form S-4 and Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-183727) to register the shares of its common stock, par value \$0.001 per share, which will be distributed to PPG s shareholders pursuant to a spin-off or a split-off in the Merger, which shares of Splitco common stock will be immediately converted into shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger. In addition, Georgia Gulf has filed a registration statement on Form S-4 (Reg. No. 333-183724) to register the shares of its common stock, par value \$0.01

Based on market conditions prior to the closing of the Merger, PPG will determine whether the shares of Splitco common stock will be distributed to PPG s shareholders in a spin-off or a split-off. In a spin-off, all PPG shareholders would receive a pro rata number of shares of Splitco common stock. In a split-off, PPG would offer its shareholders the option to exchange their shares of PPG common stock for shares of Splitco common stock in an exchange offer, which shares would immediately be exchanged for shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger, resulting in a reduction in PPG s outstanding shares. If the exchange offer is undertaken and consummated but the exchange offer is not fully subscribed because less than all shares of Splitco common stock owned by PPG are exchanged, the remaining shares of Splitco common stock owned by PPG would be distributed on a pro rata basis to PPG shareholders whose shares of PPG common stock remain outstanding after consummation of the exchange offer. Splitco has filed its registration statement under the assumption that the shares of Splitco common stock will be distributed to PPG shareholders pursuant to a split-off. This proxy statement and Georgia Gulf s registration statement on Form S-4 also assume that the shares of Splitco common stock will be distributed to PPG shareholders pursuant to a split-off. If PPG elects to distribute the shares of Splitco common stock to PPG shareholders pursuant to a spin-off, this proxy statement, Splitco s registration statement on Form S-4 and S-1 and Georgia Gulf s registration statement on Form S-4 will be amended to reflect that decision, if necessary.

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

December 6, 2012

#### MERGER PROPOSED YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT

You are cordially invited to attend the special meeting of stockholders of Georgia Gulf Corporation (Georgia Gulf) at 1:00 p.m. local time, on January 10, 2013, in the Conference Center at the South Terraces, 115 Perimeter Center Place, Atlanta, Georgia 30346. A notice of the special meeting and the proxy statement follow.

At the special meeting, you will be asked to approve a proposal to issue shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in connection with the combination of the chlor-alkali and derivatives business of PPG Industries, Inc. ( PPG ) with the business of Georgia Gulf through the merger (the Merger ) of Grizzly Acquisition Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation ( Merger Sub ), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Georgia Gulf, with and into Eagle Spinco Inc., a Delaware corporation ( Splitco ), a wholly-owned subsidiary of PPG, whereby the separate corporate existence of Merger Sub will cease and Splitco will continue as the surviving company and as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Georgia Gulf. If the proposal to approve the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger is not approved, the Merger cannot be completed.

You will also be asked to approve (1) an amendment to Georgia Gulf s Restated Certificate of Incorporation (the Articles ) to increase the number of authorized shares of Georgia Gulf common stock thereunder (the Articles Amendment ), (2) the First Amendment to the Georgia Gulf 2011 Equity and Performance Incentive Plan (the Plan) to increase the authorized number of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock reserved for issuance thereunder, to permit the grant of stock-based awards in substitution for or conversion of stock-based awards held by employees who will become employees of Georgia Gulf in connection with a merger or other corporate transaction (with the shares of Georgia Gulf common stock delivered under the substituted or converted award not counting against the share limits under the Plan), and to limit the amount of stock-based awards which a non-employee director may be granted under the Plan during any calendar year (collectively, the Plan Amendment), and (3) adjournments or postponements of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes at the time of the special meeting to approve the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger.

As more fully described in the accompanying proxy statement, in order to complete the Merger and the related transactions, PPG will separate and transfer substantially all of the assets and liabilities of its chlor-alkali and derivatives business to Splitco. In connection with this separation, Splitco will incur new indebtedness in the form of a term loan in the amount of approximately \$225.0 million, the proceeds of which will be distributed to PPG, and will issue senior notes in the amount of approximately \$675.0 million to PPG. PPG will then offer to PPG shareholders the right to exchange all or a portion of their shares of PPG common stock for shares of Splitco common stock at a discount to the per-share value of Georgia Gulf common stock in an exchange offer. If the exchange offer is consummated but is not fully subscribed, PPG will distribute the remaining shares of Splitco common stock on a pro rata basis to PPG shareholders whose shares of PPG common stock remain outstanding after consummation of the exchange offer.

Immediately after this distribution, the Merger and related transactions will be completed, and each share of Splitco common stock will be converted into the right to receive Georgia Gulf common stock based on the exchange ratio set forth in the Merger Agreement. The exchange ratio in the Merger is equal to the greater of (a) 35,200,000 shares or (b) the product of (1) the number of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger multiplied by (2) 1.02020202, divided by the number of shares of Splitco common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger. Pursuant to an amendment to the Merger Agreement, Splitco will authorize the issuance of a number of shares of Splitco common stock such that the total number of shares of Splitco common stock outstanding

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger will be that number that results in the exchange ratio in the Merger equaling one. As a result, each share of Splitco common stock (except shares of Splitco common stock held by Splitco as treasury stock) will be converted into one share of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger. Georgia Gulf expects to issue approximately 35,236,010 million shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger, although the exact number of shares to be issued in the Merger will not be known until the closing date.

After consummation of the Merger, the chlor-alkali and derivatives business of PPG will be owned by Splitco, which will be a wholly-owned subsidiary of Georgia Gulf. Splitco will be the obligor under the term loan and senior notes, which will be guaranteed by Georgia Gulf and certain of its subsidiaries. Further, immediately after the consummation of the Merger, 50.5% of Georgia Gulf common stock is expected to be held by pre-Merger holders of Splitco common stock and 49.5% of Georgia Gulf common stock is expected to be held by pre-Merger Georgia Gulf stockholders, subject to potential adjustment under limited circumstances as described in the section of this document entitled The Merger Agreement Merger Consideration. After the Merger, Georgia Gulf common stock issued will continue to be listed on the New York Stock Exchange under Georgia Gulf s current symbol, GGC.

Your board of directors believes that the Merger and the addition of the chlor-alkali and derivatives business of PPG should create value for Georgia Gulf stockholders by creating an integrated chemicals and building products leader with increased scale, enhancing Georgia Gulf s integration as a result of significant U.S. natural gas driven chlor-alkali production and providing Georgia Gulf with significant cost synergies and a strong capital structure. As a result, your board of directors recommends that you vote FOR the proposal to issue shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger, FOR the proposal to approve the Articles Amendment, FOR the proposal to approve the Plan Amendment, and, if necessary or appropriate, FOR the proposal to approve adjournments or postponements of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes at the time of the special meeting to approve the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger.

All Georgia Gulf stockholders are cordially invited to attend the special meeting, although only those stockholders of record at the close of business on November 26, 2012 are entitled to notice of the special meeting and to vote at the special meeting and any adjournments or postponements of the special meeting.

Your vote is very important. Please vote by completing, signing and dating the enclosed proxy card for the special meeting and mailing the proxy card to us, whether or not you plan to attend the special meeting. If you sign, date and mail your proxy card without indicating how you want to vote, your proxy will be counted as a vote FOR each of the proposals presented at the special meeting. In addition, you may vote by proxy by calling the toll-free telephone number or by using the Internet as described in the instructions included with the enclosed proxy card. If you do not return your card, vote by telephone or by using the Internet, or if you do not specifically instruct your bank, broker or other nominee how to vote any shares held for you in street name, your shares will not be voted at the special meeting.

This document is a proxy statement of Georgia Gulf for its use in soliciting proxies for the special meeting. This document answers questions about the proposed merger, the related transactions and the special meeting, and includes a summary description of the merger and the related

transaction	s. We urge	you to review this	entire document carefully	. In particular,	you should conside	r the matters	discussed under	Risk
<b>Factors</b>	eginning o	on page 30.						

We thank you for your consideration and continued support.

Sincerely,

Paul D. Carrico

President and Chief Executive Officer

This document is dated December 6, 2012 and is first being mailed to Georgia Gulf s stockholders on or about December 7, 2012.

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

#### NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To the Stockholders:

A special meeting of stockholders (the special meeting) of Georgia Gulf Corporation (Georgia Gulf) will be held at 1:00 p.m. local time, on January 10, 2013, in the Conference Center at the South Terraces, 115 Perimeter Center Place, Atlanta, Georgia 30346. The special meeting will be held for the following purposes:

- 1. to approve the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger;
- 2. subject to the approval of the first proposal, to approve the Articles Amendment to increase the number of authorized shares of Georgia Gulf common stock;
- 3. subject to the approval of the first proposal, to approve the Plan Amendment;
- 4. to adjourn or postpone the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes at the time of the special meeting to approve the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger; and
- 5. to transact any other business that may properly come before the special meeting or any adjourned or postponed session of the special meeting.

Georgia Gulf s board of directors has approved the Merger, the Transactions, the Merger Agreement, the Separation Agreement and the Additional Agreements (each as defined in this proxy statement), and determined that the Merger and the issuance of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger are advisable and in the best interests of Georgia Gulf and its stockholders. Georgia Gulf s board of directors recommends that stockholders vote FOR the proposal to issue shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger, FOR the proposal to approve the Articles Amendment, FOR the proposal to approve the Plan Amendment, and, if necessary or appropriate, FOR the proposal to approve adjournments or postponements of the special meeting for the purpose of soliciting additional proxies, if necessary or appropriate. If the proposal to approve the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger is not approved, the Merger cannot be completed.

All Georgia Gulf stockholders are cordially invited to attend the special meeting, although only those stockholders of record at the close of business on November 26, 2012 are entitled to notice of the special meeting and to vote at the special meeting and any adjournments or postponements of the special meeting.

WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE SPECIAL MEETING IN PERSON, PLEASE COMPLETE, DATE, SIGN AND RETURN THE ENCLOSED PROXY CARD IN THE ENCLOSED POSTAGE-PAID ENVELOPE OR VOTE YOUR SHARES OF GEORGIA GULF COMMON STOCK BY CALLING THE TOLL-FREE TELEPHONE NUMBER OR BY USING THE INTERNET AS DESCRIBED IN THE INSTRUCTIONS INCLUDED WITH YOUR PROXY CARD AT YOUR EARLIEST CONVENIENCE.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Timothy Mann, Jr.

Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Please vote your shares promptly. You can find instructions for voting on the enclosed proxy card.

December 6, 2012

## **Index to Financial Statements**

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

References To Additional Information	1
Helpful Information	2
Ouestions and Answers About the Transactions and the Special Meeting	5
<u>Summary</u>	16
The Companies	16
The Transactions	17
Summary Historical and Pro Forma Financial Data	22
Summary Historical Combined Financial Data of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business	22
Summary Historical Consolidated Financial Data of Georgia Gulf	24
Summary Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information of Georgia Gulf and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivative	
Business	<del>-</del> 26
Summary Comparative Historical and Pro Forma Per Share Data	28
Historical Common Stock Market Price Data	29
Georgia Gulf Dividend Policy	29
Risk Factors	30
Risks Related to the Transactions	30
Other Risks that Relate to Georgia Gulf, Including the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business After the Transactions	36
Cautionary Statement on Forward-Looking Statements	49
Cautionary Statement on Forward-Looking Statements	77
Information About the Special Meeting	50
General; Date; Time and Place; Purposes of the Meeting	50
Record Date; Quorum; Voting Information; Required Votes	50
Recommendation of Board of Directors	51
How to Vote	52
Solicitation of Proxies	53
Revocation of Proxies	53
Adjournments and Postponements  Adjournments and Postponements	53
Attending the Special Meeting	54
Householding  Out of the little of the littl	54
Questions and Additional Information	54
Information on PPG s Offer to Exchange	55
Information on Georgia Gulf	56
Overview	56
Georgia Gulf s Business After the Transactions	56
Georgia Gulf s Liquidity and Capital Resources After the Transactions	57
Directors and Officers of Georgia Gulf Before and After the Transactions	59
Information on the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business	62
General General	62
Products	62
Manufacturing and Facilities	63
Sales and Distribution	64
Raw Materials and Energy	64
Research and Development	64
Seasonality	65
<u>Competition</u>	65

i

## **Table of Contents**

## **Index to Financial Statements**

Regulation and Environmental Matters	65
Legal Proceedings	67
Employees	68
Board of Directors	68
Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives	
Business	69
<u>Overview</u>	69
Separation of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business from PPG Industries, Inc.	69
Results of Operations	70
Performance in 2011 Compared with 2010	71
Performance in 2010 Compared with 2009	73
Liquidity and Capital Resources	74
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements	74
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	75
Contractual Obligations	75
Critical Accounting Estimates	76
Children Accounting Estimates	
Selected Historical and Pro Forma Financial Data	78
Selected Historical Combined Financial Data of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business	78
Selected Historical Consolidated Financial Data of Georgia Gulf	79
Retroactive Presentation for Change in Accounting Principles	82
<u>Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements of Georgia Gulf and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business</u>	82
Comparative Historical and Pro Forma Per Share Data	93
<u>Historical Common Stock Market Price Data</u>	94
Georgia Gulf Dividend Policy	94
The Transactions	95
Determination of Number of Shares of Splitco Common Stock to be Distributed to PPG Shareholders	99
Background of the Transactions	99
Georgia Gulf s Reasons for the Transactions	106
Opinions of Georgia Gulf s Financial Advisors	109
PPG s Reasons for the Transactions	124
Interests of Certain Persons in the Transactions	125
Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Distribution and the Merger	125
Accounting Treatment of the Merger	127
Regulatory Approvals	128
Federal Securities Law Consequences; Resale Restrictions	128
No Appraisal or Dissenters Rights	128
The Manager Agreement	129
The Merger Agreement The Merger	
The Merger Closing: Effective Time	129 129
Merger Consideration	130
	130
<u>Issuance of Splitco Common Stock to PPG</u> Distribution of Per Share Merger Consideration	131
Treatment of PPG Equity Awards	131
Distribution With Respect to Shares of Georgia Gulf Common Stock After the Effective Time of the Merger	132
Termination of the Distribution Fund	132
Post-Closing Georgia Gulf Board of Directors and Officers	133
Stockholders Meeting	133
Oto-Chilologis Pre-cuing	133

ii

## **Index to Financial Statements**

Representations and Warranties	133
Conduct of Business Pending Closing	136
Tax Matters	140
SEC Filings	140
Regulatory Matters	141
No Solicitation	142
Board Recommendation	143
<u>Financing</u>	144
Covenant Not to Compete	147
Non-Solicitation of Employees	147
Certain Other Covenants and Agreements	148
Conditions to the Merger	149
<u>Termination</u>	150
<u>Termination Fee Payable in Certain Circumstances</u>	151
<u>Expenses</u>	152
Specific Performance	152
Other Transaction Agreements	152
<u>Amendments</u>	152
The Separation Agreement	153
Overview	153
Issuance of Splitco Common Stock to PPG Shareholders	153
Transfer of the Assets and Assumption of Liabilities	154
Transfer of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business	158
Intercompany Arrangements and Guarantee	159
Consents and Delayed Transfers	159
Shared Contracts	160
Transfer of the TCI Interests	160
No Representations or Warranties	160
Mutual Releases and Indemnification	161
Post-Closing Working Capital Adjustment	162
Covenants	162
Conditions to the Separation and Distribution	163
Termination	164
Parties in Interest	164
<u>Debt Financing</u>	165
Senior Secured Term Loan Facility	165
Splitco Debt Securities	167
PPG Bridge Facility	167
Debt Exchange	168
Exchange Loans and Exchange Notes	169
New ABL Revolver	169
Other Agreements	170
Employee Matters Agreement	170
Tax Matters Agreement	172
Transition Services Agreement	173
Shared Facilities, Services and Supply Agreement	174
Servitude Agreement	174
The Electric Generation, Distribution and Transmission Facilities Lease	174
Chlorine, Liquid Caustic Soda and Hydrochloric Acid Sales Agreements	175
Monroeville Shared Facilities Agreement	175

## **Table of Contents**

## **Index to Financial Statements**

Master Terminal Agreement	175
Chlorine Sales Agreement Amendment	176
Description of Georgia Gulf Capital Stock	177
Common Stock	177
Preferred Stock	178
Certain Anti-Takeover Effects of Provisions of the Articles and the Bylaws	178
Listing	179
Transfer Agent	179
Ownership of Georgia Gulf Common Stock	180
Proposal No. 1 Proposal To Approve the Issuance of Shares of Georgia Gulf Common Stock in the Merger	182
Required Vote	182
Proposal No. 2 Proposal to Approve the Amendment of the Articles to Increase the Number of Authorized Shares of Georgia Gulf	
Common Stock	183
General Control of the Control of th	183
<u>Overview</u>	183
Background and Purpose of the Proposed Articles Amendment	184
Effects of the Proposed Articles Amendment	184
Possible Anti-Takeover Effects of the Articles Amendment	185
No Appraisal Rights	185
Required Vote	185
Recommendation of the Georgia Gulf Board of Directors	185
Proposal No. 3 Proposal to Approve the First Amendment to the Georgia Gulf Corporation 2011 Equity and Performance Incentive Plan	186
General	186
Effects of the Plan Amendment	187
Plan Highlights	187
Summary of the Plan	190
Federal Income Tax Consequences	197
Registration with the SEC	198
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans	198
New Plan Benefits	199
Aggregate Past Grants Under the Plan	199
	199
Required Vote	
Recommendation of the Georgia Gulf Board of Directors	199
Proposal No. 4 Proposal To Approve the Adjournment or Postponement of the Special Meeting, if Necessary or Appropriate	200
Required Vote	200
Stockholder Proposals For 2013 Annual Meeting	201
Where You Can Find More Information; Incorporation by Reference	202
Index to Financial Statements of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Rusiness	F-1

## **Table of Contents**

## **Index to Financial Statements**

#### Annexes

The Merger Agreement	A
The Separation Agreement	Е
The Employee Matters Agreement	C
The Form of the Tax Matters Agreement	Γ
Opinion of Barclays Capital Inc.	E
Opinion of Houlihan Lokey Financial Advisors, Inc.	C
Form of Certificate of Amendment to Georgia Gulf Restated Certificate of Incorporation	F
First Amendment to the Georgia Gulf Corporation 2011 Equity and Performance Incentive Plan	I
Proxy Card	

v

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

#### REFERENCES TO ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

This document incorporates important business and financial information about Georgia Gulf from documents filed with the SEC that have not been included or delivered with this document. This information is available to Georgia Gulf stockholders without charge by accessing the SEC s website maintained at <a href="https://www.sec.gov">www.sec.gov</a>, or upon written or oral request to Georgia Gulf Corporation, 115 Perimeter Center Place, Suite 460, Atlanta, Georgia 30346, Attention: Investor Relations, telephone: (770) 395-4500. See Where You Can Find More Information; Incorporation by Reference.

All information contained or incorporated by reference in this document with respect to Georgia Gulf and Merger Sub and their respective subsidiaries, as well as information on Georgia Gulf after the consummation of the Transactions, has been provided by Georgia Gulf. All other information contained or incorporated by reference in this document with respect to PPG, Splitco or their respective subsidiaries, or the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business and with respect to the terms and conditions of PPG s exchange offer has been provided by PPG. This document contains or incorporates by reference references to trademarks, trade names and service marks, including tri-ethane®, VersaTrans® and Accu-Tab®, that are owned by PPG and its related entities. Transitions® is a registered trademark of Transitions Optical, Inc.

The information included in this document regarding PPG s exchange offer is being provided for informational purposes only and does not purport to be complete. For additional information on PPG s exchange offer and the terms and conditions of PPG s exchange offer, Georgia Gulf s stockholders are urged to read Splitco s registration statement on Form S-4 and Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-183727), Georgia Gulf s registration statement on Form S-4 (Reg. No. 333-183724), when each is available, and all other documents Splitco or Georgia Gulf file with the SEC relating to the Merger. This document constitutes only a proxy statement for Georgia Gulf stockholders relating to the special meeting and is not an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to purchase shares of Georgia Gulf common stock, PPG common stock or Splitco common stock.

1

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

#### HELPFUL INFORMATION

In this document:

Additional Agreements means the Employee Matters Agreement, the Tax Matters Agreement, the Shared Facilities, Services and Supply Agreement, the Transition Services Agreement, the Servitude Agreement, the Electric Generation, Distribution and Transmission Facilities Lease, and the Chlorine, Liquid Caustic Soda and Hydrochloric Acid Sales Agreements;

ASC means the Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification;

Chlorine, Liquid Caustic Soda and Hydrochloric Acid Sales Agreements means those certain agreements to be entered into at the date of the Separation between PPG and Georgia Gulf;

Chlorine Sales Agreement Amendment means the Amendment, dated as of July 18, 2012, to the Chlorine Sales Contract, dated as of January 1, 1985, as amended, between PPG and a subsidiary of Georgia Gulf;

Code means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended;

Debt Exchange means the transfer of the Debt Securities by PPG on or about the closing date of the Merger to investment banks and/or commercial banks in satisfaction of the debt obligations of PPG described in the section of this document entitled Debt Financing PPG Bridge Facility;

Debt Securities means the \$675.0 million in senior notes, subject to increase or decrease by PPG, as described in the section of this document entitled Debt Financing PPG Bridge Facility, that Splitco will issue to PPG, that PPG thereafter expects to exchange for debt obligations of PPG in the Debt Exchange, and that will be the debt obligations of Splitco, guaranteed by Georgia Gulf and certain of its subsidiaries, following consummation of the Transactions;

Distribution means the distribution by PPG of its shares of Splitco common stock to the holders of shares of PPG common stock by way of an exchange offer and, with respect to any shares of Splitco common stock that are not subscribed for in the exchange offer, a pro rata distribution to the holders of shares of PPG common stock;

Distribution Tax Opinion means an opinion from Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz, tax counsel to PPG, substantially to the effect that (i) the Distribution will be treated as satisfying the business purpose requirement described in Treasury Regulation § 1.355-2(b)(1), (ii) the Distribution will not be treated as being used principally as a device for the distribution of earnings and profits of PPG or Splitco or both under Section 355(a)(1)(B) of the Code, (iii) the stock of Splitco distributed in the Distribution will not be treated as other qualified property by reason of the application of Section 355(e)(1) of the Code; and (iv) the Splitco securities will constitute securities for purposes of the application of Section 361(a) of the Code;

The Electric Generation, Distribution and Transmission Facilities Lease means the Generation, Distribution and Transmission Facilities Lease to be entered into at the date of the Separation between PPG and Splitco;

Employee Matters Agreement means the Employee Matters Agreement, dated as of July 18, 2012, by and among Georgia Gulf, PPG and Splitco;

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;

Exchange Loans means the unsecured loans to be issued by Splitco at the closing of the Merger if certain conditions are satisfied and the debt obligations of PPG described in the section of this document entitled Debt Financing PPG Bridge Facility have not been repaid in full prior to the closing of the Merger;

Exchange Notes means unsecured senior exchange notes of Splitco (1) for which the Exchange Loans (if any) may be exchanged in whole or in part at any time after the first anniversary of the date

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

the Exchange Loans (if any) are first exchanged for the debt obligations of PPG described in the section of this document entitled

Debt Financing PPG Bridge Facility or (2) which may be issued at the closing of the Merger upon the demand of certain financial
institutions if certain conditions are satisfied and the debt obligations of PPG described in the section of this document entitled Debt
Financing PPG Bridge Facility have not been repaid in full prior to the closing of the Merger;

GAAP means generally accepted accounting principles in the United States;

Georgia Gulf means Georgia Gulf Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and, unless the context otherwise requires, its subsidiaries;

Georgia Gulf common stock means the common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, of Georgia Gulf;

Georgia Gulf Group means Georgia Gulf and each of its consolidated subsidiaries including, after consummation of the Merger, Splitco;

Group means the Georgia Gulf Group, PPG Group, or Splitco Group, as the case may be.

Master Terminal Agreement means the Master Terminal Agreement to be entered into at the date of the Separation between PPG and Splitco;

Merger means the combination of Georgia Gulf s business and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business through the merger of Merger Sub with and into Splitco, whereby the separate corporate existence of Merger Sub will cease and Splitco will continue as the surviving company and as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Georgia Gulf, as contemplated by the Merger Agreement;

Merger Agreement means the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 18, 2012, by and among PPG, Splitco, Georgia Gulf and Merger Sub, as amended by Amendment No. 1 to the Merger Agreement, dated as of August 31, 2012 (for the avoidance of doubt, references to the Merger Agreement made with respect to the opinions of Georgia Gulf s financial advisors excludes Amendment No. 1);

Merger Sub means Grizzly Acquisition Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Georgia Gulf, and, unless the context otherwise requires, its subsidiaries;

Monroeville Shared Facilities Agreement means the Monroeville Shared Facilities Agreement to be entered into at the date of the Separation, between PPG and Splitco;

NYSE means the New York Stock Exchange;

PPG means PPG Industries, Inc., a Pennsylvania corporation, and, unless the context otherwise requires, its subsidiaries, other than Splitco and any of its subsidiaries;

PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business means substantially all of the assets and liabilities of the business of PPG relating to the production of chlorine, caustic soda and related chemicals as further described in the section of this document entitled Information on the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business and to be transferred to Splitco pursuant to the terms and conditions contained in the Separation Agreement;

PPG common stock means the common stock, par value \$1.66 2/3 per share, of PPG;

PPG Group means PPG and each of its consolidated subsidiaries which, after consummation of the Merger, will not include the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business;

PPG shareholders means the holders of PPG common stock;

SEC means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission;

Securities Act means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended;

Separation means the transfer by PPG of the assets and liabilities related to the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business, including certain subsidiaries of PPG, to Splitco;

3

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

Separation Agreement means the Separation Agreement, dated as of July 18, 2012, between PPG and Splitco;

Servitude Agreement means the Servitude Agreement to be entered into at the date of the Separation between PPG and Splitco;

Shared Facilities, Services and Supply Agreement means the Shared Facilities, Services and Supply Agreement to be entered into at the date of the Separation between PPG and Splitco;

Special Distribution means the distribution to be made in connection with the Transactions by Splitco to PPG consisting of (1) approximately \$225.0 million in cash, subject to increase or decrease by PPG, as described in the section of this document entitled Debt Financing PPG Bridge Facility, and (2) the Debt Securities in an amount that would satisfy the debt obligations of PPG described in the section of this document entitled Debt Financing PPG Bridge Facility;

Splitco means Eagle Spinco, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and, prior to the Merger, a wholly-owned subsidiary of PPG, and, unless the context otherwise requires, its subsidiaries;

Splitco Group means Splitco and each of its consolidated subsidiaries (including, after consummation of the Merger, Georgia Gulf and each of its subsidiaries);

Tax Matters Agreement means the Tax Matters Agreement to be entered into at the date of the Separation by and among Georgia Gulf, PPG and Splitco;

TCI means Taiwan Chlorine Industries, Ltd., a joint venture between PPG and China Petrochemical Development Corporation. For more information about the transfer of PPG s interest in TCI to Splitco, see The Merger Agreement Financing;

TCI Interests means the shares of TCI owned by PPG as of the date of the Merger Agreement, which represent a 60 percent interest in TCI;

Term Facility means \$225.0 million in new bank debt, subject to increase or decrease by PPG, as described in the section of this document entitled Debt Financing PPG Bridge Facility, to be incurred by Splitco under a senior secured term loan facility, which debt will be obligations of Splitco and, upon consummation of the Transactions, guaranteed by Georgia Gulf and certain of its subsidiaries;

Transactions means the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement and the Separation Agreement, which provide for, among other things, the Separation, the Term Facility, the Debt Securities, the Debt Exchange, the Distribution and the Merger, as described in the section of this document entitled The Transactions;

Transition Services Agreement means the Transition Services Agreement to be entered into at the date of the Separation between PPG and Splitco; and

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

#### QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE TRANSACTIONS AND THE SPECIAL MEETING

The following are some of the questions that Georgia Gulf stockholders may have, and answers to those questions. These questions and answers, as well as the following summary, are not meant to be a substitute for the information contained in the remainder of this document, and this information is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed descriptions and explanations contained elsewhere in this document. Georgia Gulf urges its stockholders to read this document in its entirety prior to making any decision.

#### Q: Why am I receiving this document?

A: Georgia Gulf and PPG have entered into the Merger Agreement pursuant to which the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business will combine with Georgia Gulf s business. Georgia Gulf is holding a special meeting of its stockholders in order to obtain stockholder approval of the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger. Georgia Gulf cannot complete the Merger unless the proposal relating to the issuance of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger is approved by the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares of Georgia Gulf common stock represented and voting at the special meeting, either in person or by proxy (provided that the total votes cast on the proposal represent over 50% in interest of all shares entitled to vote on the proposal).

This document includes important information about the Transactions and the special meeting of the stockholders of Georgia Gulf. Georgia Gulf stockholders should read this information carefully and in its entirety. A copy of the Merger Agreement is attached as <u>Annex A</u> to this document. The enclosed voting materials allow Georgia Gulf stockholders to vote their shares without attending the Georgia Gulf special meeting. The vote of Georgia Gulf stockholders is very important and Georgia Gulf encourages its stockholders to vote their proxy as soon as possible. Please follow the instructions set forth on the enclosed proxy card (or on the voting instruction form provided by the record holder if shares of Georgia Gulf stock are held in the name of a bank, broker or other nominee).

#### Q: What is Georgia Gulf proposing?

A: Georgia Gulf is proposing to combine the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business with Georgia Gulf s business. The Merger will be effected through a series of Transactions that are described in more detail below and elsewhere in this document. At the consummation of these Transactions:

the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business will be owned by Splitco, which will be a wholly-owned subsidiary of Georgia Gulf;

Splitco will have incurred approximately \$900.0 million of new debt (in addition to any existing indebtedness of Splitco), which will consist of (1) the Term Facility in the amount of approximately \$225.0 million, the cash proceeds of which will be distributed by Splitco to PPG in connection with the Separation and prior to the consummation of the Merger, and (2) approximately \$675.0 million of Debt Securities which are expected to be issued by Splitco to PPG prior to the Distribution, and then expected to be transferred by PPG on or about the closing date of the Merger to investment banks and/or commercial banks in satisfaction of debt obligations of PPG in the Debt Exchange, each of which will be guaranteed by Georgia Gulf and certain of its subsidiaries following the consummation of the Transactions; and

50.5% of Georgia Gulf common stock is expected to be held by pre-Merger holders of Splitco common stock and 49.5% of Georgia Gulf common stock is expected to be held by pre-Merger Georgia Gulf stockholders, subject to potential adjustment under limited circumstances as described in the section of this document entitled 
The Merger Agreement Merger Consideration.

Georgia Gulf expects to issue approximately 35,236,010 shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger, although the exact number of shares to be issued in the Merger will not be known until the closing date. Based upon the reported closing sale price of \$45.65 per share for Georgia Gulf common stock on the NYSE on November 26, 2012 and the 34,538,268 shares of Georgia Gulf common stock issued and

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

outstanding on November 26, 2012, the total value of the shares expected to be issued by Georgia Gulf and the amount of cash received by PPG in the Transactions, including the Term Facility and the Debt Securities, which will be the obligations of Splitco and, following the consummation of the Merger, will be guaranteed by Georgia Gulf, would have been approximately \$2,508.5 million. The value of the consideration to be paid by Georgia Gulf in the Merger will be computed using the value of Georgia Gulf common stock on the closing date, and therefore, the actual purchase price will fluctuate with the market price of Georgia Gulf common stock until the Merger is consummated.

#### Q: What are the key steps of the Transactions?

A: Below is a summary of the key steps of the Transactions. A step-by-step description of material events relating to the Transactions is set forth under The Transactions.

PPG will transfer to Splitco the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business.

Prior to the Distribution, Splitco will incur new indebtedness in the form of the Term Facility in the amount of approximately \$225.0 million and issue approximately \$675.0 million in aggregate principal amount of Debt Securities to PPG. PPG will ultimately receive the cash proceeds from the approximately \$225.0 million term loan under the Term Facility through a distribution in connection with the Separation and prior to the consummation of the Merger. PPG is then expected to transfer the Debt Securities on or about the closing date of the Merger to investment banks and/or commercial banks in satisfaction of the debt obligations of PPG described in the section of this document entitled Debt Financing PPG Bridge Facility. The Debt Securities are subsequently expected to be sold by the investment banks and/or commercial banks to third-party investors as described below. PPG is expected to receive approximately \$900.0 million in cash from the Term Facility and Debt Securities.

PPG will offer to PPG shareholders the right to exchange all or a portion of their shares of PPG common stock for shares of Splitco common stock at a discount to the per-share value of Georgia Gulf common stock in an exchange offer. If the exchange offer is consummated but is not fully subscribed, PPG will distribute the remaining shares of Splitco common stock on a pro rata basis to PPG shareholders whose shares of PPG common stock remain outstanding after consummation of the exchange offer. Any PPG shareholder who validly tenders (and does not properly withdraw) shares of PPG common stock for shares of Splitco common stock in the exchange offer will waive their rights with respect to such shares to receive, and forfeit any rights to, shares of Splitco common stock distributed on a pro rata basis to PPG shareholders in the event the exchange offer is not fully subscribed. If there is a pro rata distribution, the exchange agent will calculate the exact number of shares of Splitco common stock not exchanged in the exchange offer and to be distributed on a pro rata basis, and the number of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock into which the remaining shares of Splitco common stock will be converted in the Merger will be transferred to PPG shareholders (after giving effect to the consummation of the exchange offer) as promptly as practicable thereafter.

Immediately after the Distribution, and on the closing date of the Merger, Merger Sub will merge with and into Splitco, whereby the separate corporate existence of Merger Sub will cease and Splitco will continue as the surviving company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Georgia Gulf. In the Merger, each share of Splitco common stock will be converted into the right to receive Georgia Gulf common stock based on the exchange ratio set forth in the Merger Agreement, as described in the section of this document entitled The Merger Agreement Merger Consideration. Following the consummation of the Merger, Georgia Gulf and certain of its subsidiaries will guarantee the Term Facility and the Debt Securities.

Immediately after consummation of the Merger, 50.5% of Georgia Gulf common stock is expected to be held by pre-Merger holders of Splitco common stock and 49.5% of Georgia Gulf common stock is expected to be held by pre-Merger Georgia Gulf stockholders, subject to potential adjustment under limited circumstances as described in the section of this document entitled The Merger Agreement Merger Consideration.

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

As described in the second bullet point above, Georgia Gulf and PPG expect the Debt Securities to be transferred by PPG on or about the closing date of the Merger to investment banks and/or commercial banks in the Debt Exchange in exchange for debt obligations of PPG described in the section of this document entitled Debt Financing PPG Bridge Facility. The Debt Securities will then be sold by the investment banks and/or commercial banks to third-party investors pursuant to an exemption from registration under the Securities Act in either a private placement or a Rule 144A transaction.

- Q: What are the material U.S. federal income tax consequences to Georgia Gulf and Georgia Gulf s stockholders resulting from the Transactions?
- A: Georgia Gulf will not recognize any gain or loss for U.S. federal income tax purposes as a result of the Merger. Because Georgia Gulf stockholders will not participate in the Distribution or the Merger, Georgia Gulf stockholders generally will not recognize gain or loss upon either the Distribution or the Merger. Georgia Gulf stockholders should consult their own tax advisor for a full understanding of the tax consequences to them of the Distribution and the Merger. The material U.S. federal income tax consequences of the Distribution and the Merger are described in more detail in the section of this document entitled The Transactions Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Distribution and the Merger.
- Q: What will Georgia Gulf stockholders receive in the Merger?
- A: Georgia Gulf stockholders will not directly receive any consideration in the Merger. All shares of Georgia Gulf common stock issued and outstanding immediately before the Merger will remain issued and outstanding after consummation of the Merger. Immediately after the Merger, Georgia Gulf stockholders will continue to own shares in Georgia Gulf, which will include the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business. Splitco, as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Georgia Gulf, will be responsible for repaying the approximately \$900.0 million of debt that will be incurred in connection with the Transactions, and these debt obligations will be guaranteed by Georgia Gulf and certain of its subsidiaries after the consummation of the Merger.
- Q: What are the principal adverse consequences of the Transactions to Georgia Gulf stockholders?
- Following the consummation of the Transactions, Georgia Gulf stockholders will participate in a company that holds the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business, but their percentage interest in this company will be diluted. Immediately after the consummation of the Merger, pre-merger Georgia Gulf stockholders are expected to own 49.5% of Georgia Gulf common stock. Under limited circumstances described in the section of this document entitled The Merger Agreement Merger Consideration, pre-Merger Georgia Gulf stockholders could own less than 49.5% of Georgia Gulf common stock following the consummation of the Merger and under such circumstances, there is no minimum percentage of Georgia Gulf common stock that pre-Merger Georgia Gulf stockholders may own. Therefore, the voting power represented by the shares held by pre-Merger Georgia Gulf stockholders will be lower immediately following the Merger than immediately prior to the Merger. In addition, PPG shareholders that participate in the exchange offer will be exchanging their shares of PPG common stock for shares of Splitco common stock at a discount to the per-share value of Georgia Gulf common stock. The existence of a discount, along with the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock pursuant to the Merger, may negatively affect the market price of Georgia Gulf common stock. Further, Splitco will be the obligor on approximately \$900.0 million of debt, consisting of approximately \$225.0 million under the Term Facility and approximately \$675.0 million in Debt Securities, which, after the consummation of the Merger, will be guaranteed by Georgia Gulf and certain of its subsidiaries. This additional indebtedness could adversely affect the operations and financial condition of Georgia Gulf. Georgia Gulf also expects to incur significant one-time costs in connection with the Transactions, including approximately (1) \$25 to \$30 million of advisory, legal, accounting and other professional fees related to the Transactions, (2) \$30 to \$40 million of financing related fees and (3) \$55 million in transition and integration expenses, such as consulting professionals fees, information technology implementation costs and relocation and severance costs, that Georgia Gulf management believes are necessary to realize approximately \$115.0 million of annualized cost synergies within two years from the consummation of the Transactions. The

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

incurrence of these costs may have an adverse impact on Georgia Gulf s liquidity or operating results in the periods in which they are incurred. Finally, Georgia Gulf s management will be required to devote a significant amount of time and attention to the process of integrating the operations of Georgia Gulf and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business. If Georgia Gulf management is not able to effectively manage the process, Georgia Gulf s business could suffer and its stock price may decline. See Risk Factors for a further discussion of the material risks associated with the Transactions.

#### Q: How will the Transactions impact the future liquidity and capital resources of Georgia Gulf?

The approximately \$225.0 million under the Term Facility and approximately \$675.0 million in Debt Securities will be the debt obligations of Splitco, and, after consummation of the Merger, will be guaranteed by Georgia Gulf and certain of its subsidiaries. Georgia Gulf anticipates that its primary sources of liquidity for working capital and operating activities, including any future acquisitions, after the Transactions will be cash provided by operations and additional availability under its current or any future credit facilities. Georgia Gulf expects to enter into the New ABL Revolver (as defined and described in the section entitled Debt Financing New ABL Revolver ), which is expected to, among other things, increase Georgia Gulf s availability to \$500.0 million, subject to applicable borrowing base limitations and certain other conditions. There can be no assurance that Georgia Gulf will be able to enter into the New ABL Revolver on acceptable terms, at an appropriate time, or at all. Following the consummation of the Transactions, Georgia Gulf expects capital expenditures to be approximately \$165.0 million on a pro forma basis for the year ending December 31, 2013 due to the expected increase in Georgia Gulf s asset base. Similarly, following the consummation of the Transactions and after taking into account expected synergies, Georgia Gulf expects cash from operations to be in the range of \$350.0 million to \$400.0 million for the year ending December 31, 2013. Georgia Gulf believes that the combination of the operations, purchasing and logistics networks of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business with Georgia Gulf s existing business will result in annualized cost synergies of approximately \$115.0 million within two years from the consummation of the Transactions as a result of (1) approximately \$40 million in savings from procurement and logistics, (2) approximately \$35 million in savings from operating rate optimization and (3) approximately \$40 million in savings from reduced general and administrative expenses, including reduced overhead, information technology savings and the impact of purchase accounting pension adjustments. Georgia Gulf expects to incur significant, one-time costs in connection with the Transactions, including approximately (1) \$25 to \$30 million of advisory, legal, accounting and other professional fees related to the Transactions, (2) \$30 to \$40 million of financing related fees and (3) \$55 million in transition and integration expenses, such as consulting professionals fees, information technology implementation costs and relocation and severance costs, that Georgia Gulf management believes are necessary to realize approximately \$115.0 million of annualized cost synergies within two years from the consummation of the Transactions.

#### Q: How do the Transactions impact Georgia Gulf s dividend policy?

A: On May 21, 2012, Georgia Gulf declared a cash dividend of \$0.08 per share, Georgia Gulf s first dividend since 2008. This dividend was paid on July 10, 2012. Georgia Gulf also declared a cash dividend of \$0.08 per share on September 11, 2012, which was paid on October 10, 2012. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Georgia Gulf has agreed not to pay a quarterly dividend of greater than \$0.08 per share until after the consummation of the Merger and indicated its intent to pay quarterly dividends from and after the closing of the Merger at no less than the current rate of \$0.32 per share per annum, although the payment of cash dividends in the future will be at the discretion of Georgia Gulf s board of directors. The declaration of any cash dividends, and the amount thereof, will depend on many factors, including Georgia Gulf s financial condition, capital requirements, funds from operations, the dividend taxation level, Georgia Gulf s stock price, future business prospects, and any other factors, as Georgia Gulf s board of directors may deem relevant. Additionally, Georgia Gulf s current asset-backed revolving credit facility (the ABL Revolver) and the indenture governing the 9 percent notes place significant restrictions on Georgia Gulf s ability to pay dividends, and other indebtedness Georgia Gulf may incur in the future, including the New ABL Revolver, may contain similar restrictions.

8

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

- Q: What will PPG and PPG shareholders receive in the Transactions?
- A: PPG will receive the cash proceeds of the Term Facility, and will receive the Debt Securities. The Debt Securities are expected to be issued by Splitco to PPG prior to the Distribution. The Term Facility and Debt Securities will be the debt obligations of Splitco and, following the consummation of the Merger, will be guaranteed by Georgia Gulf and certain of its subsidiaries. As a result, PPG will receive total cash proceeds of approximately \$900.0 million in connection with the Separation and the Distribution, subject to adjustments. In the exchange offer, PPG will offer to PPG shareholders the right to exchange all or a portion of their shares of PPG common stock for shares of Splitco common stock at a discount to the per-share value of Georgia Gulf common stock. If the exchange offer is consummated but is not fully subscribed, PPG will distribute the remaining shares of Splitco common stock on a pro rata basis to PPG shareholders whose shares of PPG common stock remain outstanding after consummation of the exchange offer. Any PPG shareholder who validly tenders (and does not properly withdraw) shares of PPG common stock for shares of Splitco common stock in the exchange offer will waive their rights with respect to such shares to receive, and forfeit any rights to, shares of Splitco common stock distributed on a pro rata basis to PPG shareholders in the event the exchange offer is not fully subscribed. In the Merger, each share of Splitco common stock will be converted into the right to receive Georgia Gulf common stock based on the exchange ratio set forth in the Merger Agreement, as described in the section of this document entitled The Merger Agreement Merger Consideration.
- Q: Are there any conditions to the consummation of the Transactions?
- A: Yes. Consummation of the Transactions is subject to a number of conditions, including:

the approval of Georgia Gulf s stockholders of the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger;

the receipt of certain rulings from the Internal Revenue Service (the IRS );

the receipt by PPG of the Distribution Tax Opinion;

the completion of the various transaction steps contemplated by the Merger Agreement and the Separation Agreement, including the Separation and the Distribution;

clearance of the Merger under applicable antitrust or competition laws in Canada and the United States; and

other customary conditions.

If Georgia Gulf waives the satisfaction of a material condition to the consummation of the Transactions, Georgia Gulf will evaluate the appropriate facts and circumstances at that time and resolicit stockholder approval of the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger if required to do so by law.

This document describes these conditions in more detail under The Merger Agreement Conditions to the Merger.

#### O: When will the Transactions be completed?

A: The Transactions are expected to be completed in late 2012 or early 2013. However, it is possible that the Transactions could be completed at a later time or not at all. For a discussion of the conditions to the Transactions, see The Merger Agreement Conditions to the Merger.

#### Q: Are there risks associated with the Transactions?

A: Yes. The material risks associated with the Transactions are discussed in the section of this document entitled Risk Factors. Those risks include, among others, the possibility that Georgia Gulf may fail to realize the anticipated benefits of the Merger, the uncertainty that Georgia Gulf will be able to integrate the

9

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business successfully, the possibility that Georgia Gulf may be unable to provide benefits and services or access to equivalent financial strength and resources to the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business that historically have been provided by PPG, the additional long-term indebtedness and liabilities that Georgia Gulf will have following the consummation of the Transactions and the substantial dilution to the ownership interest of current Georgia Gulf stockholders following the consummation of the Merger.

- Q: Will there be any change to the board of directors or the executive officers of Georgia Gulf after the Transactions?
- A: Yes. Georgia Gulf will increase the size of its board of directors by three members, and three individuals selected by PPG and approved by the Nominating and Governance Committee of the board of directors of Georgia Gulf will be appointed to fill the vacancies. In accordance with the Merger Agreement, these individuals will also be nominated for re-election to the board of directors of Georgia Gulf at Georgia Gulf s 2013 annual meeting of stockholders. The executive officers of Georgia Gulf immediately prior to the consummation of the Merger are expected to be the executive officers of Georgia Gulf immediately following the consummation of the Merger.
- Q: What stockholder approvals are needed in connection with the Transactions?
- A: Georgia Gulf cannot complete the Transactions unless the proposal relating to the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger is approved by the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares of Georgia Gulf common stock represented and voting at the special meeting, either in person or by proxy (provided that the total votes cast on the proposal represent over 50% in interest of all shares entitled to vote on the proposal). Georgia Gulf stockholder approval of an amendment to the Articles to increase the authorized shares of Georgia Gulf common stock to 200 million shares or the Plan Amendment is **NOT** required to consummate the Merger.
- Q: What is the proposed Articles Amendment on which I am being asked to vote?
- A: Georgia Gulf is seeking stockholder approval, subject to the approval of the issuance of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger and contingent on the consummation of the Merger, of a proposal to amend the Articles to increase the number of authorized shares of Georgia Gulf common stock from 100 million shares to 200 million shares. Please see the section entitled Proposal No. 2 Proposal to Approve the Amendment of the Articles to Increase the Number of Authorized Shares of Georgia Gulf Common Stock for a further discussion of this proposal.
- Q: Why is Georgia Gulf proposing to amend the Articles to increase the number of authorized shares of Georgia Gulf common stock?
- **A:** Georgia Gulf s board of directors believes it is in Georgia Gulf s best interest to increase the number of authorized shares of Georgia Gulf common stock to 200 million in order to accommodate the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger and to assure that additional shares of common stock are available for general corporate purposes, which may include:

raising capital through sales of equity securities (issuances of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock or debt or equity securities that are convertible into Georgia Gulf common stock);

acquiring other businesses or assets;

establishing strategic relationships with other companies;
providing equity incentives to employees, officers or directors;
declaring stock dividends or effecting stock splits; and
achieving other corporate purposes.

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

- Q: What stockholder approval is needed in connection with the proposed Articles Amendment?
- A: Georgia Gulf cannot amend the Articles to increase the number of authorized shares of Georgia Gulf common stock unless the proposal is approved by the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares of Georgia Gulf common stock entitled to vote on the proposal. In addition, the Articles Amendment will be effected only if the proposal relating to the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger is approved by Georgia Gulf s stockholders and the Merger is consummated.

#### Q: What is the Plan Amendment on which I am being asked to vote in connection with the Transactions?

A: In connection with the Transactions, Georgia Gulf is seeking stockholder approval of the Plan Amendment in order to:

increase the number of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock available under the Plan by 1,800,000 shares;

permit the grant under the Plan of awards in substitution for or conversion of stock or stock-based awards held by awardees of an entity engaging in a corporate acquisition or merger transaction with Georgia Gulf or any of its subsidiaries, with the shares of Georgia Gulf common stock delivered under the substituted or converted award not counting against the share limit or other limits on the number of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock available for issuance under the Plan; and

limit the aggregate amount of stock or stock-based awards which a non-employee director may be granted under the Plan during any calendar year to a value as of their respective dates of grant of \$300,000.

Please see the section entitled Proposal No. 3 Proposal to Approve the First Amendment to the Georgia Gulf Corporation 2011 Equity and Performance Incentive Plan for a further discussion of this proposal.

#### Q: Why is Georgia Gulf proposing the Plan Amendment?

A: The Georgia Gulf board of directors believes the Plan Amendment is in the best interests of Georgia Gulf and the Georgia Gulf stockholders because (1) it will facilitate the conversion of certain stock based awards held by current employees of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business, who in connection with the Merger will become employees of Georgia Gulf or an affiliate of Georgia Gulf, into stock-based awards covered under the Plan and (2) it will enable Georgia Gulf after the Merger to continue to reward and provide incentives to Georgia Gulf s key employees, the number of which will increase significantly upon the consummation of the Merger as a result of the employees of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business joining Georgia Gulf, as well as to attract and retain additional highly qualified employees. In addition, the Georgia Gulf board of directors is seeking stockholder approval of a more specific limitation on awards to individual directors and believes that such a limitation is in the best interests of Georgia Gulf and the Georgia Gulf stockholders to place reasonable restrictions on the amount of each non-employee director s equity-based compensation in any calendar year. Please see the section entitled Proposal No. 3 Proposal to Approve the First Amendment to the Georgia Gulf Corporation 2011 Equity and Performance Incentive Plan General.

#### Q: What stockholder approval is needed in connection with the Plan Amendment?

A: Georgia Gulf cannot effect the Plan Amendment unless the proposal is approved by the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares of Georgia Gulf common stock represented and voting at the special meeting, either in person or by proxy (provided that the total votes cast on the proposal represent over 50% in interest of all shares entitled to vote on the proposal). The Plan Amendment will be effected only if

the proposal relating to the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger is approved by Georgia Gulf s stockholders and the Merger is consummated.

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

- Q: Do PPG shareholders have to vote to approve the Transactions, the proposal to increase the number of authorized shares of Georgia Gulf common stock under the Articles or the proposal to approve the Plan Amendment?
- A: No.
- Q: What if a Georgia Gulf stockholder does not vote on the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger, on the proposal to amend the Articles or on the proposal to amend the Plan?
- A: The outcome depends on how the Georgia Gulf common stock is held and whether any vote is cast or not.

If a Georgia Gulf stockholder submits a proxy to Georgia Gulf but the proxy does not indicate how it should be voted on the proposals, the proxy will be counted as a vote **FOR** the proposals.

If a Georgia Gulf stockholder submits a proxy to Georgia Gulf and the proxy indicates that the stockholder abstains from voting as to a proposal, it will have the same effect as a vote against the proposal.

If a Georgia Gulf stockholder fails to submit a proxy to Georgia Gulf, that stockholder s shares will not count towards the required quorum of 50% in interest of all shares entitled to vote on the proposals to approve the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger and to approve the Plan Amendment. In addition, such a failure to submit a proxy to Georgia Gulf will have the same effect as a vote against the proposal to approve the Articles Amendment.

If a Georgia Gulf stockholder holds shares in street name, through that stockholder s bank, broker or other nominee, such shares will be considered to be represented at the special meeting and voted only as to those matters marked on the proxy card. Under NYSE listing standards, if a Georgia Gulf stockholder fails to instruct its bank, broker or other nominee how to vote that stockholder s shares on the proposals, the bank, broker or other nominee is prohibited from voting on the proposals with respect to that stockholder s shares, and those shares will not count towards the required quorum of 50% in interest of all shares entitled to vote on the proposals. In addition, if a Georgia Gulf stockholder fails to instruct its bank, broker or other nominee how to vote that stockholder s shares on the proposal to approve the Articles Amendment, such failure will have the same effect as a vote against the proposal.

- Q: How does the Georgia Gulf board of directors recommend shareholders vote?
- A: The Georgia Gulf board of directors recommends that the stockholders of Georgia Gulf vote **FOR** approval of the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger, **FOR** the proposal to approve the Articles Amendment, **FOR** the proposal to approve the Plan Amendment, and, if necessary or appropriate, **FOR** the adjournment or postponement of the special meeting to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes at the time of the special meeting to approve the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger.
- Q: Have any Georgia Gulf stockholders already agreed to vote for the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger?

- A: No.
- Q: How can Georgia Gulf stockholders cast their vote?
- A: Georgia Gulf stockholders may vote before the special meeting in one of the following ways:

use the toll-free number shown on the proxy card (or voting instruction card if a Georgia Gulf stockholder received its proxy materials by mail from a bank or broker);

visit the website shown on the proxy card (or voting instruction card) to submit a proxy via the Internet;

12

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

complete, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card (or voting instruction card) in the enclosed postage-paid envelope; or

attend the special meeting and vote their shares.

- Q: If a Georgia Gulf stockholder is not going to attend the special meeting, should that stockholder return its proxy card or otherwise vote its shares?
- A: Yes. Returning the proxy card (or voting instruction card) or voting by calling the toll-free number shown on the proxy card (or voting instruction card) or visiting the website shown on the proxy card (or voting instruction card) ensures that the shares will be represented and voted at the special meeting, even if a Georgia Gulf stockholder will be unable to or does not attend.
- Q: If a Georgia Gulf stockholder s shares are held in street name through its bank, broker or other nominee, will that bank, broker or other nominee vote those shares?
- A: Banks, brokers or other nominees will vote shares of a Georgia Gulf stockholder with respect to the proposals at the special meeting only if the Georgia Gulf stockholder instructs its bank, broker or other nominee how to vote. A Georgia Gulf stockholder should follow the directions provided by its bank, broker or other nominee regarding how to instruct its bank, broker or other nominee to vote its shares. If a Georgia Gulf stockholder does not provide its bank, broker or other nominee with instructions, under NYSE rules, that bank, broker or other nominee will not be authorized to vote with respect to any of the proposals in this proxy statement. Shares registered in the name of a bank, broker or other nominee, for which proxies are voted on some, but not all matters, will be considered to be represented at the special meeting and voted only as to those matters marked on the proxy card. Shares registered in the name of a bank, broker or other nominee may be voted in person at the special meeting by contacting the bank, broker or other nominee to request a letter confirming its beneficial ownership of the shares and that the bank, broker or other nominee will not vote the shares at the special meeting, and bringing that letter to the special meeting.
- Q: Can a Georgia Gulf stockholder change its vote after mailing its proxy card?
- A: Yes. If a holder of record of Georgia Gulf common stock has properly completed and submitted its proxy card, the Georgia Gulf stockholder can change its vote in any of the following ways:

by sending a signed notice of revocation to the Corporate Secretary of Georgia Gulf that is received prior to the special meeting stating that the Georgia Gulf stockholder revokes its proxy;

by properly completing a new proxy card bearing a later date and properly submitting it so that it is received prior to the special meeting;

by logging onto the Internet website specified on the proxy card in the same manner a stockholder would to submit its proxy electronically or by calling the toll-free number specified on the proxy card prior to the special meeting, in each case if the Georgia Gulf stockholder is eligible to do so and following the instructions on the proxy card; or

by attending the special meeting and voting in person.

Simply attending the special meeting will not revoke a proxy. In the event of multiple online or telephone votes by a stockholder, each vote will supersede the previous vote and the last vote cast will be deemed to be the final vote of the stockholder unless such vote is revoked in person at the special meeting.

If a Georgia Gulf stockholder holds shares in street name through its bank, broker or other nominee, and has directed such person to vote its shares, it should instruct such person to change its vote, or if in the alternative a Georgia Gulf stockholder wishes to vote in person at the special meeting, it must bring to the special meeting a letter from the bank, broker or other nominee confirming its beneficial ownership of the shares and that the bank, broker or other nominee is not voting the shares at the special meeting.

#### **Table of Contents**

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

0:	What should	Georgia	Gulf	stockhol	lders do	now?
----	-------------	---------	------	----------	----------	------

- A: After carefully reading and considering the information contained in this document, Georgia Gulf stockholders should vote their shares as soon as possible so that their shares will be represented and voted at the Georgia Gulf special meeting. Georgia Gulf stockholders should follow the instructions set forth on the enclosed proxy card (or on the voting instruction card provided by the record holder if their shares are held in the name of a bank, broker or other nominee).
- Q: Can Georgia Gulf stockholders dissent and require appraisal of their shares?
- A: No.
- Q: Will the instruments that govern the rights of Georgia Gulf stockholders with respect to their shares of Georgia Gulf common stock after the Transactions be different from those that govern the rights of current Georgia Gulf stockholders?
- A: The rights of Georgia Gulf stockholders with respect to their shares of Georgia Gulf common stock after the consummation of the Transactions will continue to be governed by federal and state laws and Georgia Gulf s governing documents, including:

the corporate law of the State of Delaware, including the Delaware General Corporation Law (the DGCL );

the Articles: and

the Amended and Restated Bylaws of Georgia Gulf Corporation (the Bylaws ).

If the proposals to issue Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger and increase the number of authorized shares of Georgia Gulf common stock under the Articles are approved by the Georgia Gulf stockholders and the Merger is consummated, the Articles will be amended to increase the number of authorized shares of Georgia Gulf common stock from 100 million shares to 200 million shares. The additional shares of authorized Georgia Gulf common stock would be identical to the shares of common stock now authorized and outstanding, and this amendment would not otherwise affect the rights of current holders of Georgia Gulf common stock. Assuming the issuance of approximately 35,236,010 shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger and the effectiveness of the Articles Amendment, approximately 127,688,191 shares of Georgia Gulf common stock are expected to remain available under the Articles after the consummation of the Merger and the effectiveness of the Articles Amendment. Please see the section entitled Proposal No. 2 Proposal to Approve the Amendment of the Articles to Increase the Number of Authorized Shares of Georgia Gulf Common Stock for a further discussion of the effects of the Articles Amendment.

- Q: Who can answer my questions?
- A: If you have any questions about the Transactions or the special meeting, need assistance in voting your shares or need additional copies of this document or the enclosed proxy card (or voting instruction card), you should contact:

AST Phoenix Advisors

110 Wall Street

27th Floor

New York, NY 10005

Telephone: (800) 330-5136

or

Georgia Gulf Corporation

115 Perimeter Center Place, Suite 460

Atlanta, Georgia 30346

Attention: Investor Relations

Telephone: (770) 395-4500

14

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

- Q: Where can I find more information about Georgia Gulf and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business?
- A: Georgia Gulf stockholders can find more information about Georgia Gulf and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business in the sections of this document entitled Information on Georgia Gulf, Information on the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business and from the various sources described in the section of this document entitled Where You Can Find More Information; Incorporation by Reference.

15

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

#### **SUMMARY**

The following summary contains certain information described in more detail elsewhere in this document. It does not contain all the details concerning the Transactions, including information that may be important to you. To better understand the Transactions, you should carefully review this entire document and the documents it refers to. See Where You Can Find More Information; Incorporation by Reference.

#### The Companies

Georgia Gulf Corporation

Georgia Gulf Corporation

115 Perimeter Center Place, Suite 460

Atlanta, Georgia 30346

Telephone: (770) 395-4500

Georgia Gulf Corporation is a leading, integrated North American manufacturer and international marketer of chemicals and building products. Georgia Gulf manufactures two chemical lines, chlorovinyls and aromatics, as well as vinyl-based building and home improvement products. Georgia Gulf s vinyl-based building and home improvement products, marketed under the Royal Building Products and Exterior Portfolio brands, include window and door profiles, mouldings, siding, pipe and pipe fittings and deck products. Georgia Gulf, headquartered in Atlanta, Georgia, has manufacturing facilities located throughout North America to provide industry-leading service to customers.

Grizzly Acquisition Sub, Inc.

Grizzly Acquisition Sub, Inc.

c/o Georgia Gulf Corporation

115 Perimeter Center Place, Suite 460

Atlanta, Georgia 30346

Telephone: (770) 395-4500

Grizzly Acquisition Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation referred to in this document as Merger Sub, is a newly formed, direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Georgia Gulf that was organized specifically for the purpose of completing the Merger. Merger Sub has engaged in no business activities to date and it has no material assets or liabilities of any kind, other than those incident to its formation and in connection with the Transactions.

PPG Industries, Inc.

PPG Industries, Inc.

One PPG Place

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15272

Telephone: (412) 434-3131

PPG Industries, Inc., incorporated in Pennsylvania in 1883, is a leading coatings and specialty products company. PPG s net sales in 2011 totaled \$14,885 million and 2011 net income was \$1,095 million. PPG s corporate headquarters is located in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. PPG has manufacturing facilities, sales offices, research and development centers and distribution centers located throughout the world. At December 31, 2011 PPG operated 128 manufacturing facilities in 45 countries.

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

Eagle Spinco Inc.

Eagle Spinco Inc.

c/o PPG Industries, Inc.

One PPG Place

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15272

Telephone: (412) 434-3131

Eagle Spinco Inc., a Delaware corporation referred to in this document as Splitco, is a newly formed, direct wholly-owned subsidiary of PPG that was organized specifically for the purpose of effecting the Separation. Splitco has engaged in no business activities to date and it has no material assets or liabilities of any kind, other than those incident to its formation and those incurred in connection with the Transactions.

Splitco is a holding company. In the Transactions, PPG will transfer the assets and liabilities related to the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business, including certain subsidiaries of PPG, to Splitco or one of its subsidiaries. In exchange therefor, PPG will receive all the issued and outstanding common stock of Splitco, the cash proceeds of approximately \$225.0 million from the Term Facility and the Debt Securities in an aggregate principal amount of approximately \$675.0 million. The PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business produces chlor-alkali and derivative products, including chlorine, caustic soda, VCM, chlorinated solvents, calcium hypochlorite, ethylene dichloride, HCL and phosgene derivatives. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business generated net sales of \$1,741.0 million and net income of \$233.0 million.

#### The Transactions

On July 19, 2012, Georgia Gulf and PPG announced that they, along with Splitco and Merger Sub, had entered into the Merger Agreement, and that PPG and Splitco had entered into the Separation Agreement, which together provide for the combination of Georgia Gulf s business and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business. In the Transactions, PPG will transfer the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business to Splitco. Prior to the Distribution, PPG will receive the cash proceeds of approximately \$225.0 million from borrowings under the Term Facility through a distribution in connection with the Separation and prior to the consummation of the Merger. PPG will also receive approximately \$675.0 million in Debt Securities, which are expected to be issued by Splitco to PPG prior to the Distribution, and then transferred on or about the closing date of the Merger to investment banks and/or commercial banks in satisfaction of the debt obligations of PPG described in the section of this document entitled Debt Financing PPG Bridge Facility.

On the closing date of the Merger, PPG will distribute shares of Splitco common stock to its participating shareholders in an exchange offer. If the exchange offer is consummated but is not fully subscribed, PPG will distribute the remaining shares of Splitco common stock on a pro rata basis to PPG shareholders whose shares of PPG common stock remain outstanding after consummation of the exchange offer. Any PPG shareholder who validly tenders (and does not properly withdraw) shares of PPG common stock for shares of Splitco common stock in the exchange offer will waive their rights with respect to such shares to receive, and forfeit any rights to, shares of Splitco common stock distributed on a pro rata basis to PPG shareholders in the event the exchange offer is not fully subscribed. If there is a pro rata distribution, the exchange agent will calculate the exact number of shares of Splitco common stock not exchanged in the exchange offer and to be distributed on a pro rata basis, and the number of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock into which the remaining shares of Splitco common stock will be converted in the Merger will be transferred to PPG shareholders (after giving effect to the consummation of the exchange offer) as promptly as practicable thereafter. Immediately after the Distribution and on the closing date of the Merger, Merger Sub will merge with and into Splitco, whereby the separate corporate existence of Merger Sub will cease and Splitco will continue as the surviving company and a wholly-

Table of Contents 45

17

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

owned subsidiary of Georgia Gulf. In the Merger, each share of Splitco common stock will be converted into the right to receive Georgia Gulf common stock based on the exchange ratio set forth in the Merger Agreement, as described in the section of this document entitled The Merger Agreement Merger Consideration.

Georgia Gulf expects to issue approximately 35,236,010 shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger, although the exact number of shares to be issued in the Merger will not be known until the closing date. Based upon the reported closing sale price of \$45.65 per share for Georgia Gulf common stock on the NYSE on November 26, 2012 and the 34,538,268 shares of Georgia Gulf common stock issued and outstanding on November 26, 2012, the total value of the shares expected to be issued by Georgia Gulf and the amount of cash received by PPG in the Transactions, including the Term Facility and the Debt Securities, which will be the obligations of Splitco and, following the consummation of the Merger, will be guaranteed by Georgia Gulf, would have been approximately \$2,508.5 million. The value of the consideration to be paid by Georgia Gulf in the Merger will be computed using the value of Georgia Gulf common stock on the closing date, and therefore, the actual purchase price will fluctuate with the market price of Georgia Gulf common stock until the Merger is consummated.

After the Merger, Georgia Gulf will own and operate the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business through Splitco, which will be Georgia Gulf s wholly-owned subsidiary, and will also continue its current businesses. All shares of Georgia Gulf common stock, including those issued in the Merger, will be listed on the NYSE under Georgia Gulf s current trading symbol GGC.

Below is a step-by-step description of the sequence of material events relating to the Transactions.

#### Step 1 Separation

PPG will transfer to Splitco, a newly formed, direct wholly-owned subsidiary of PPG, the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business. This transfer to Splitco will include, among the other assets and liabilities of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business, PPG s (1) 50% interest in PHH Monomers, LLC (PHH), a joint venture with Georgia Gulf and (2) 50% interest in RS Cogen, L.L.C. (RS Cogen), a joint venture with an affiliate of Entergy Corporation. PPG is currently discussing with its joint venture partner, China Petrochemical Development Corporation (CPDC), the potential transfer of the TCI Interests to Splitco, or a subsidiary thereof. In the event that PPG does not convey the TCI Interests at or prior to the effective time of the Separation to Splitco, or a subsidiary thereof, the Special Distribution will be reduced by \$130 million. Georgia Gulf does not believe that there would be a material adverse impact on the combined business after the consummation of the Merger if the TCI Interests were not transferred as part of the Transactions.

## Step 2 Incurrence of Debt

Prior to the Distribution, Splitco will incur new indebtedness in the form of the Term Facility in the amount of approximately \$225.0 million and issue approximately \$675.0 million in aggregate principal amount of Debt Securities to PPG. PPG will ultimately receive the cash proceeds from the approximately \$225.0 million term loan under the Term Facility through a distribution in connection with the Separation and prior to the consummation of the Merger. PPG is then expected to transfer the Debt Securities on or about the closing date of the Merger to investment banks and/or commercial banks in satisfaction of the debt obligations of PPG described in the section of this document entitled Debt Financing PPG Bridge Facility. The Debt Securities are subsequently expected to be sold by the investment banks and/or commercial banks to third-party investors as described below. PPG is expected to receive approximately \$900.0 million in cash from the Term Facility and Debt Securities.

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

Step 3 Distribution Exchange Offer

PPG will offer to PPG shareholders the right to exchange all or a portion of their shares of PPG common stock for shares of Splitco common stock at a discount to the per-share value of Georgia Gulf common stock in an exchange offer.

If the exchange offer is consummated but is not fully subscribed, PPG will distribute the remaining shares of Splitco common stock on a pro rata basis to PPG shareholders whose shares of PPG common stock remain outstanding after consummation of the exchange offer. Any PPG shareholder who validly tenders (and does not properly withdraw) shares of PPG common stock for shares of Splitco common stock in the exchange offer will waive their rights with respect to such shares to receive, and forfeit any rights to, shares of Splitco common stock distributed on a pro rata basis to PPG shareholders in the event the exchange offer is not fully subscribed. If there is a pro rata distribution, the exchange agent will calculate the exact number of shares of Splitco common stock not exchanged in the exchange offer and to be distributed on a pro rata basis, and the number of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock into which the remaining shares of Splitco common stock will be converted in the Merger will be transferred to PPG shareholders (after giving effect to the consummation of the exchange offer) as promptly as practicable thereafter.

The exchange agent will hold, for the account of the relevant PPG shareholders, the global certificate(s) representing all of the outstanding shares of Splitco common stock, pending the consummation of the Merger. Shares of Splitco common stock will not be able to be traded during this period.

As previously noted, Georgia Gulf has prepared this document under the assumption that the shares of Splitco will be distributed to PPG shareholders pursuant to a split-off. Based on market conditions prior to closing, PPG will determine whether the Splitco shares will be distributed to PPG s shareholders in a spin-off or a split-off and, once a final decision is made, this document will be amended to reflect that decision, if necessary.

#### Step 4 Merger

Immediately after the Distribution, and on the closing date of the Merger, Merger Sub will merge with and into Splitco, whereby the separate corporate existence of Merger Sub will cease and Splitco will continue as the surviving company and as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Georgia Gulf. In the Merger, each share of Splitco common stock will be converted into the right to receive Georgia Gulf common stock based on the exchange ratio set forth in the Merger Agreement, as described in the section of this document entitled The Merger Agreement Merger Consideration. Following the consummation of the Merger, Georgia Gulf and certain of its subsidiaries will guarantee the Term Facility and the Debt Securities.

Immediately after consummation of the Merger, 50.5% of Georgia Gulf common stock is expected to be held by pre-Merger holders of Splitco common stock and 49.5% of Georgia Gulf common stock is expected to be held by pre-Merger Georgia Gulf stockholders, subject to potential adjustment under limited circumstances as described in the section of this document entitled The Merger Agreement Merger Consideration.

## Step 5 Sale of Debt Securities to Third-Party Investors

As described in Step 2 above, Georgia Gulf and PPG expect the Debt Securities to be transferred by PPG on or about the closing date of the Merger to investment banks and/or commercial banks in the Debt Exchange in exchange for debt obligations of PPG described in the section of this document entitled Debt Financing PPG Bridge Facility. The Debt Securities will then be sold by the investment banks and/or commercial banks to third-party investors pursuant to an exemption from registration under the Securities Act in either a private placement or a Rule 144A transaction.

## **Index to Financial Statements**

Set forth below are diagrams that graphically illustrate, in simplified form, the existing corporate structure, the corporate structure immediately following the Distribution, and the corporate structure immediately following the consummation of the Transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement.

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

After completion of all of the steps described above:

Georgia Gulf s wholly-owned subsidiary, Splitco, will hold the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business and will be the obligor under the Term Facility and the Debt Securities, which will be guaranteed by Georgia Gulf and certain of its subsidiaries; and

PPG will receive the approximately \$225.0 million in cash proceeds from the Term Facility and will exchange the approximately \$675.0 million in Debt Securities for debt obligations of PPG in the Debt Exchange (and the Debt Securities will then be sold to third-party investors), resulting in PPG receiving approximately \$900.0 million in cash from the Transactions.

Immediately after consummation of the Merger, 50.5% of Georgia Gulf common stock is expected to be held by pre-Merger holders of Splitco common stock and 49.5% of Georgia Gulf common stock is expected to be held by pre-Merger Georgia Gulf stockholders, subject to potential adjustment under limited circumstances as described in the section of this document entitled. The Merger Agreement Merger Consideration. In connection with the Transactions, Georgia Gulf, Merger Sub, PPG and/or Splitco have entered into or will enter into the Additional Agreements relating to, among other things, certain tax matters, certain employee matters, the provision of certain transition services during a transition period following the consummation of the Transactions and the sharing of facilities, services and supplies. See Other Agreements.

Various factors were considered by Georgia Gulf and PPG in negotiating the terms of the Transactions, including the equity ownership levels of Georgia Gulf stockholders and the PPG shareholders receiving shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Distribution. The principal factors considered by the parties negotiating the terms of the Transactions were the strategic and financial benefits that could be expected to be achieved by combining Georgia Gulf and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business relative to the future prospects of Georgia Gulf on a standalone basis, the relative actual results of operations and prospects of Georgia Gulf and of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business, synergies expected to be realized in the combination, as well as other alternatives that may be available to Georgia Gulf, and the risks and uncertainties associated with the Transactions and with such alternatives, and the other factors identified in the sections of this document entitled. The Transactions Background of the Transactions and The Transactions Georgia Gulf is Reasons for the Transactions. PPG also considered, among other things, the value to PPG and PPG is shareholders that could be realized if the Transactions did not occur, the proposed tax treatment of the Transactions, and the other factors identified in the section of this document entitled. The Transactions PPG is Reasons for the Transactions.

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

#### SUMMARY HISTORICAL AND PRO FORMA FINANCIAL DATA

The following summary historical combined financial data of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business, summary historical consolidated financial data of Georgia Gulf, summary unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data of Georgia Gulf and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business, summary comparative historical and pro forma per share data of Georgia Gulf, summary historical common stock market price data and Georgia Gulf dividend policy information are being provided to help you in your analysis of the financial aspects of the Transactions. You should read this information in conjunction with the financial information included elsewhere and incorporated by reference into this document. See Where You Can Find More Information; Incorporation by Reference, Information on the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business, Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business, Information on Georgia Gulf, Selected Historical and Pro Forma Financial Data and the audited and unaudited financial statements and related notes of each of Georgia Gulf and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business incorporated by reference and included elsewhere in this document, respectively.

#### Summary Historical Combined Financial Data of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business

The following summary historical combined financial data of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business for the years ended December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 and as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 has been derived from the audited combined financial statements of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business. The following summary historical condensed combined financial data of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011, and as of September 30, 2012, September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2009, has been derived from the unaudited condensed combined financial statements of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business, but is not necessarily indicative of the results or the financial condition to be expected for the remainder of the year or any future date or period. The management of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business believes that the unaudited condensed combined financial statements reflect all normal and recurring adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the results as of and for the interim periods presented. This information is only a summary and should be read in conjunction with Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business and the financial statements of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business and the notes thereto included elsewhere in this document.

## **Index to Financial Statements**

		nths Ended nber 30, 2011	Year E 2011	nded Decem 2010	ber 31, 2009
(In Millions)					
Statement of Income Data:					
Net sales	\$ 1,292	\$ 1,340	\$ 1,741	\$ 1,441	\$ 1,282
Cost of sales, exclusive of depreciation and amortization	884	927	1,224	1,117	1,001
Selling, general and administrative	91	91	123	102	100
Depreciation and amortization	32	31	41	39	40
Research and development net	1	1	2	2	2
Business restructuring	1				6
Other charges	8	9	10	11	9
Other earnings	(13)	(25)	(27)	(7)	(12)
Income before income taxes					
	288	306	368	177	136
Income tax expense	95	102	122	65	43
Net income attributable to the controlling and noncontrolling interests					
	193	204	246	112	93
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests	173	204	240	112	93
	(10)	(9)	(13)	(7)	(5)
Net income (attributable to the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business)				<b>*</b> 40 <b>7</b>	* 00
	\$ 183	\$ 195	\$ 233	\$ 105	\$ 88
Balance Sheet Data (at end of period):					
Total assets	\$ 786	\$ 718	\$ 734	\$ 621	\$ 601
Working capital	\$ 176	\$ 131	\$ 119	\$ 81	\$ 77
Other long-term obligations	\$ 318	\$ 274	\$ 320	\$ 268	\$ 264
Total Parent company shareholders equity	\$ 241	\$ 222	\$ 181	\$ 132	\$ 130
Cash Flow Data:					
Cash from operating activities	\$ 172	\$ 191	\$ 276	\$ 142	\$ 133
Cash used for investing activities	\$ (31)	\$ (56)	\$ (86)	\$ (43)	\$ (22)
Cash used for financing activities	\$ (153)	\$ (131)	\$ (174)	\$ (95)	\$ (123)
Cush used for initialising activities	ψ (155)	ψ (151)	ψ (1/4)	Ψ (93)	ψ (123)

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

#### Summary Historical Consolidated Financial Data of Georgia Gulf

The following summary historical consolidated financial data of Georgia Gulf for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, and as of such dates, has been derived from Georgia Gulf s audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009. The following summary historical consolidated financial data as of and for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 has been derived from the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of Georgia Gulf and is not necessarily indicative of the results or financial condition to be expected for the remainder of the year or for any future period. Georgia Gulf s management believes that the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of the results and the financial condition as of and for the interim periods presented. This information is only a summary and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements of Georgia Gulf and the notes thereto and the Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations section contained in Georgia Gulf s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 and quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2012, each of which is incorporated by reference into this document. See Where You Can Find More Information; Incorporation by Reference.

(In millions, except per share data,	Nine	As of a Months Er	nd for th ided Sept			As of and for the Year Ended December 31,				
percentages and employees)	2012 2011		2	2011		2010	2009	9		
Results of Operations:										
Net sales	\$	2,541	\$	2,549	\$	3,223	\$	2,818	\$ 1,99	90
Cost of sales		2,210		2,292		2,920		2,544	1,7	79
Selling, general and administrative expenses		153		130		168		160	18	83
Long-lived asset impairment charges						8			2	22
Transaction related costs, restructuring and other, net		26		1		3				7
(Gains) losses on sale of assets		(19)		(1)		(1)				
Operating income (loss)		171		127		125		114		(1)
Interest expense		(44)		(50)		(65)		(69)		31)
Loss on redemption and other debt costs				(1)		(5)				43)
Gain on debt exchange				( )		(-)			,	01
Foreign exchange loss		(1)		(1)		(1)		(1)		(1)
Interest income										1
Income from operations before taxes		126		75		54		44	20	26
Provision (benefit) for income taxes		38		14		(4)		1		95
Tre violen (conemy for moonie tales		20				(.)		•		
Income from energians		88		61		58		43	13	31
Income from operations		00		01		30		43	1,	31
		0.0	<b>.</b>	2.4		<b>~</b> 0	Φ.	4.5		
Net income	\$	88	\$	61	\$	58	\$	43	\$ 13	31
Basic earnings per share	\$	2.54	\$	1.75	\$	1.66	\$	1.22	\$ 8.2	27
Diluted earnings per share	\$	2.53	\$	1.75	\$	1.66	\$	1.22	\$ 8.2	26

## **Index to Financial Statements**

(In millions, except per share data,		and for the nded September 30,		As of and for the Year Ended December 31,		
percentages and employees)	2012	2011	2011	2011 2010 20		
Financial Highlights:						
Net working capital	\$ 448	\$ 407	\$ 385	\$ 400	\$ 341	
Property, plant and equipment, net	637	641	641	653	688	
Total assets	1,801	1,835	1,644	1,666	1,605	
Total debt	498	592	497	578	633	
Lease financing obligation	114	108	110	112	106	
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities	66	20	187	184	1	
Net cash (used in) investing activities	(32)	(115)	(137)	(45)	(26)	
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities	(5)	16	(86)	(56)	(29)	
Depreciation and amortization	68	78	102	100	117	
Capital expenditures	56	44	66	46	30	
Acquisition, net of cash acquired		71	71			
Maintenance expenditures	129	107	109	137	104	
Other Selected Data:						
Adjusted EBITDA(1)	\$ 237	\$ 194	\$ 223	\$ 201	\$ 155	
Weighted average common shares outstanding basic	34	34	34	34	15	
Weighted average common shares outstanding diluted	35	34	34	34	15	
Common shares outstanding	35	34	34	34	34	
Return on sales	3.5%	2.4%	1.8%	1.5%	5.8%	
Employees	3,758	3,994	3,744	3,619	3,489	

<sup>(1)</sup> For the reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net income determined in accordance with GAAP, see Selected Historical and Pro Forma Financial Data Selected Historical Consolidated Financial Data of Georgia Gulf.

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

# Summary Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information of Georgia Gulf and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business

The following summary unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information of Georgia Gulf and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business is being presented for illustrative purposes only, and this information should not be relied upon for purposes of making any investment or other decisions. The following summary unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data assumes that the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business had been owned by Georgia Gulf for all periods, and at the date presented. Georgia Gulf and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business may have performed differently had they actually been combined for all periods or on the date presented. You should also not rely on the following summary unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data as being indicative of the results or financial condition that would have been achieved had Georgia Gulf and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business been combined other than during the periods or on the date presented or of the actual future results or financial condition of Georgia Gulf to be achieved following the Transactions.

	Nine Mo Septe	and for the onths Ended ember 30, 2012	Year	or the Ended er 31, 2011
(In millions, except per share data)				
Results of Operations:				
Net sales	\$	3,794	\$	4,876
Cost of sales		3,109		4,134
Net income		220		203
Net income attributable to controlling shareholders		212		193
Basic earnings per share	\$	3.03	\$	2.75
Diluted earnings per share	\$	3.02	\$	2.75
Financial Highlights:				
Total assets	\$	5,381		
Total liabilities		3,104		
Other Selected Data:				
Adjusted EBITDA(1)	\$	561	\$	637
Weighted average common shares outstanding basic		70		69
Weighted average common shares outstanding diluted		70		69

(1) In addition to evaluating financial condition and results of operations in accordance with GAAP, management of Georgia Gulf also reviews and evaluates certain alternative financial measures not prepared in accordance with GAAP. Non-GAAP measures do not have definitions under GAAP and may be defined differently by and not be comparable to, similarly titled measures used by other companies. As a result, management of Georgia Gulf considers and evaluates non-GAAP measures in connection with a review of the most directly comparable measure calculated in accordance with GAAP. Management of Georgia Gulf cautions investors not to place undue reliance on such non-GAAP measures, but also to consider them with the most directly comparable GAAP measure.

In this document, Georgia Gulf supplements its financial information prepared in accordance with GAAP with Adjusted EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, cash and non-cash restructuring and certain other costs related to financial restructuring and business improvement initiatives, gains or losses on substantial modification of debt and sales of certain assets, certain purchase accounting and certain non-income tax reserve adjustments, professional fees related to a previously disclosed and withdrawn unsolicited offer and the Merger, goodwill, intangibles, and other long-lived asset impairments, and interest expense related to the OMERS sale-leaseback transaction) because Georgia Gulf believes investors commonly use Adjusted EBITDA as a main component of valuing cyclical companies such as

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

Georgia Gulf. Adjusted EBITDA is not a measurement of financial performance under GAAP and should not be considered as an alternative to net income (loss) as a measure of performance or to cash provided by operating activities as a measure of liquidity. In addition, Georgia Gulf s calculation of Adjusted EBITDA may be different from the calculation used by other companies and, therefore, comparability may be limited.

A reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net income (loss) determined in accordance with GAAP is provided below:

	Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012							
	Hist	orical	Pro Forma	Adjustments				
		PPG Chlor- alkali and			Pro Forma			
(in millions)	Georgia Gulf	Derivatives Business	Acquisition Adjustments	Financing Adjustments	Condensed Combined			
Net income	\$ 88.3	\$ 193.0	\$ (34.4)	\$ (26.9)	\$ 220.0			
Net income attributable to non-controlling interests		(10.0)	2.1		(7.9)			
(Benefit) provision for income taxes	38.1	95.0	(20.7)	(16.1)	96.3			
Interest income	(0.2)				(0.2)			
Interest expense	43.8			43.0	86.8			
Depreciation and amortization expense	68.0	32.0	82.4		182.4			
Transaction related costs, restructuring and other, net	26.4	1.0	(16.3)		11.1			
(Gains) losses on sale of assets	(19.3)				(19.3)			
Other(a)	(8.6)				(8.6)			
Adjusted EBITDA	\$ 236.5	\$ 311.0	\$ 13.1	\$	\$ 560.6			

	II:at	31, 2011			
(in millions)	Histo Georgia Gulf	orical PPG Chlor- alkali and Derivatives Business	Acquisition Adjustments	Adjustments Financing Adjustments	Pro Forma Condensed Combined
Net income	\$ 57.8	\$ 246.0	\$ (65.2)	\$ (35.8)	\$ 202.8
Net income attributable to non-controlling interests		(13.0)	3.0		(10.0)
(Benefit) provision for income taxes	(4.3)	122.0	(39.1)	(21.5)	57.1
Interest income	(0.3)				(0.3)
Loss on redemption and other debt costs	4.9				4.9
Interest expense	65.7			57.3	123.0
Depreciation and amortization expense	101.5	41.0	109.8		252.3
Long-lived asset impairment charges	8.3				8.3
Restructuring costs	3.3				3.3
(Gains) losses on sale of assets	(1.2)				(1.2)
Other(a)	(12.8)		9.3		(3.5)
Adjusted EBITDA	\$ 222.9	\$ 396.0	\$ 17.8	\$	\$ 636.7

<sup>(</sup>a) Other for Georgia Gulf for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 consists of \$3.0 million of loan cost amortization and \$5.5 million of lease financing obligations interest. For the year ended December 31, 2011, Other for Georgia Gulf consists of \$4.1 million in loan cost amortization, \$7.4 million of lease financing obligations interest and a \$4.4 million reversal of non-income tax reserves, partially offset by \$3.0 million in

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

- acquisition costs and inventory purchase accounting adjustments. For the year ended December 31, 2011, Other in the Acquisition Adjustments column consists of \$9.3 million inventory purchase accounting adjustment.
- (b) The following is a reconciliation of the acquisition adjustments made to depreciation in Note 2, Acquisition Adjustments in the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements to the acquisition adjustments made to depreciation contained in this reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA:

	 months nded	_	Year nded
(in millions)	mber 30, 2012		mber 31, 2011
An increase in depreciation expense resulting from an increase in the value of the			
PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business s property, plant and equipment	\$ 28.7	\$	38.2
An increase in amortization expense resulting from adjustments to intangible			
assets	53.7		71.6
Depreciation and amortization expense pro forma acquisition adjustment included			
in the reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net income (loss) determined in			
accordance with GAAP	\$ 82.4	\$	109.8

## **Summary Comparative Historical and Pro Forma Per Share Data**

The following table sets forth certain historical and pro forma per share data for Georgia Gulf. The historical data has been derived from and should be read together with Georgia Gulf s audited consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto contained in Georgia Gulf s annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, and Georgia Gulf s unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto contained in Georgia Gulf s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2012, each of which are incorporated by reference into this document. See Where You Can Find More Information; Incorporation by Reference. The pro forma data has been derived from the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements of Georgia Gulf and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business included elsewhere in this document.

This summary comparative historical and pro forma per share data is being presented for illustrative purposes only. Georgia Gulf and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business may have performed differently had the Transactions occurred prior to the periods or at the date presented. You should not rely on the pro forma per share data presented as being indicative of the results that would have been achieved had Georgia Gulf and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business been combined during the periods or at the date presented or of the actual future results or financial condition of Georgia Gulf and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business to be achieved following the Transactions.

	Nine Mor	nd for the nths Ended er 30, 2012	As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2011		
	Historical	Pro Forma	Historical Pro Forma		
(shares in thousands)					
Basic earnings per share	\$ 2.54	\$ 3.03	\$ 1.66 \$ 2.75		
Diluted earnings per share	\$ 2.53	\$ 3.02	\$ 1.66 \$ 2.75		
Weighted average common shares outstanding Basic	34,413	69,649	34,086 69,332		
Weighted average common shares outstanding Diluted	34,641	69,887	34,122 69,367		
Book value per share of common stock	\$ 14.09	\$ 30.03	\$ 14.05		
Dividends declared per share of common stock	\$ 0.16	\$ 0.16			

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

#### **Historical Common Stock Market Price Data**

Historical common stock market price data for the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business does not exist as the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business currently does not operate as a stand-alone entity. As such, shares of common stock associated therewith are not currently listed on a public stock exchange and are not publicly traded.

Shares of Georgia Gulf common stock currently trade on the NYSE under the symbol GGC. On July 18, 2012, the last trading day before the announcement of the Transactions, the last sale price of Georgia Gulf common stock reported by the NYSE was \$28.85. On December 5, 2012, the last sale price of Georgia Gulf common stock reported by the NYSE was \$44.18.

The following table sets forth the high and low sale prices of Georgia Gulf common stock on the NYSE for the periods indicated. The quotations are as reported in published financial sources. For current price information, Georgia Gulf stockholders are urged to consult publicly available sources. See Selected Historical and Pro Forma Financial Data Historical Common Stock Market Price Data.

	Georgia Gulf Common Stock Price			
	High	]	Low	
Year Ending December 31, 2012				
First Quarter	\$ 35.56	\$	20.24	
Second Quarter	\$ 37.24	\$	23.80	
Third Quarter	\$ 40.88	\$	24.52	
Fourth Quarter (through December 5, 2012)	\$ 47.17	\$	35.27	
Year Ended December 31, 2011				
First Quarter	\$ 38.15	\$	23.68	
Second Quarter	\$ 40.59	\$	22.57	
Third Quarter	\$ 25.35	\$	13.69	
Fourth Quarter	\$ 20.83	\$	12.19	
Year Ended December 31, 2010				
First Quarter	\$ 19.08	\$	13.91	
Second Quarter	\$ 21.79	\$	13.26	
Third Quarter	\$ 17.00	\$	11.11	
Fourth Quarter	\$ 24.75	\$	15.61	

#### **Georgia Gulf Dividend Policy**

On May 21, 2012, Georgia Gulf declared a cash dividend of \$0.08 per share, Georgia Gulf s first dividend since 2008. This dividend was paid on July 10, 2012. Georgia Gulf also declared a cash dividend of \$0.08 per share on September 11, 2012, which was paid on October 10, 2012. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Georgia Gulf has agreed not to pay a quarterly dividend of greater than \$0.08 per share until after the consummation of the Merger and indicated its intent to pay quarterly dividends from and after the consummation of the Merger at no less than the current rate of \$0.32 per share per annum, although the payment of cash dividends in the future will be at the discretion of Georgia Gulf s board of directors. The declaration of any cash dividends, and the amount thereof, will depend on many factors, including Georgia Gulf s financial condition, capital requirements, funds from operations, the dividend taxation level, Georgia Gulf s stock price, future business prospects, and any other factors, as Georgia Gulf s board of directors may deem relevant. Additionally, the ABL Revolver and the indenture governing Georgia Gulf s 9.0 percent senior secured notes due 2017 (the 9 percent notes) place significant restrictions on Georgia Gulf s ability to pay dividends, and other indebtedness Georgia Gulf may incur in the future, including the New ABL Revolver (as defined and described in the section of this document entitled Debt Financing New ABL Revolver), may contain similar restrictions.

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

#### RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider each of the following risks and all of the other information contained and incorporated by reference in this document and the annexes hereto. Some of the risks described below relate principally to the business and the industry in which Georgia Gulf, including the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business, will operate after the Transactions, while others relate principally to the Transactions. The remaining risks relate principally to the securities markets generally and ownership of Georgia Gulf common stock. The risks described below are not the only risks that Georgia Gulf currently faces or will face after the consummation of the Transactions.

#### **Risks Related to the Transactions**

The calculation of the merger consideration will not be adjusted if the value of the business or assets of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business declines or if the value of Georgia Gulf increases before the Merger is completed.

The calculation of the number of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock to be distributed in the Merger will not be adjusted if the value of the business or assets of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business declines prior to the consummation of the Merger or the value of Georgia Gulf increases prior to the Merger. Georgia Gulf will not be required to consummate the Merger if there has been any material adverse effect (as this term is described in the section of this document entitled. The Merger Agreement Representations and Warranties.) on the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business. However, Georgia Gulf will not be permitted to terminate the Merger Agreement or resolicit the vote of Georgia Gulf stockholders because of any changes in the market prices of Georgia Gulf s common stock or any changes in the value of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business that do not constitute a material adverse effect on the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business.

Georgia Gulf will incur significant costs related to the consummation of the Transactions that could have a material adverse effect on its liquidity, cash flows and operating results.

Georgia Gulf will incur significant, one-time costs in connection with the Transactions, including approximately (1) \$25 to \$30 million of advisory, legal, accounting and other professional fees related to the Transactions, (2) \$30 to \$40 million of financing related fees and (3) \$55 million in transition and integration expenses, such as consulting professionals fees, information technology implementation costs and relocation and severance costs, that Georgia Gulf management believes are necessary to realize approximately \$115.0 million of annualized cost synergies within two years from the consummation of the Transactions. These costs may have a material adverse impact on Georgia Gulf s liquidity, cash flows and operating results in the periods in which they are incurred.

Georgia Gulf will have a substantial amount of long-term indebtedness and liabilities following the Transactions, which could adversely affect its liquidity, operations and financial condition.

Georgia Gulf has a significant amount of indebtedness and, following the consummation of the Transactions, will continue to have significant indebtedness and liabilities. In addition, as of September 30, 2012, on an actual and a pro forma basis after giving effect to the Transactions, Georgia Gulf had and would have had outstanding long-term indebtedness and liabilities of \$1.2 billion and \$3.1 billion, respectively. Georgia Gulf also has and will continue to have the ability to incur a significant amount of additional debt. After the consummation of the Transactions, Georgia Gulf s indebtedness could have important consequences, including but not limited to:

limiting its ability to invest operating cash flow in its operations due to debt service and other obligations;

limiting its ability to obtain additional debt or equity financing for working capital expenditures or other general corporate purposes;

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

limiting its operational flexibility due to the covenants contained in its debt agreements;

requiring it to dispose of significant assets in order to satisfy its debt service and other obligations if it is not able to satisfy these obligations from cash from operations or other sources;

to the extent that Georgia Gulf s debt is subject to floating interest rates, increasing Georgia Gulf s vulnerability to fluctuations in market interest rates;

limiting Georgia Gulf s ability to buy back Georgia Gulf common stock or pay cash dividends;

limiting its flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in its business or industry, thereby limiting its ability to compete with companies that are not as highly leveraged; and

increasing its vulnerability to economic downturns and changing market conditions.

Georgia Gulf s ability to satisfy its debt service and other obligations will depend on its future performance, which will be affected by financial, business, economic and other factors, including prices, industry capacity levels and demand for Georgia Gulf s products, raw materials and energy costs and availability, feedstock availability and changes in governmental and environmental regulations. If Georgia Gulf does not generate enough cash to satisfy its debt service and other obligations, it may be required to refinance all or part of its existing debt, sell its assets, borrow more money or raise equity. There is no assurance that Georgia Gulf will be able to, at any given time, refinance its debt, sell its assets, borrow more money or raise capital on terms acceptable to it or at all.

Georgia Gulf will assume certain material pension and post-retirement welfare benefit obligations associated with the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business. Future funding obligations related to these liabilities could restrict cash available for Georgia Gulf s operations, capital expenditures or other requirements, or require Georgia Gulf to borrow additional funds.

In the Transactions, Georgia Gulf, through its wholly owned subsidiary Splitco, will assume certain substantial tax-qualified and non tax-qualified pension obligations related to employees and retirees of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business. In connection therewith, the legally required level of pension assets will be transferred from the tax-qualified PPG pension plans to the new pension plans to be established by Georgia Gulf in respect of those liabilities. In addition to the standard minimum funding requirements, the Pension Protection Act of 2006 (the Pension Act ) (as amended by the Worker, Retiree and Employer Recovery Act of 2008) requires companies with tax-qualified defined benefit pension plans to make contributions to such plans as frequently as quarterly in order to meet the funding target for such plans, as defined in the Pension Act. The failure to meet the funding target could result in the imposition of fines or penalties. Funding obligations with respect to tax-qualified pension plans change due to, among other things, the actual investment return on plan assets. Continued volatility in the capital markets may have a further negative impact on the funded status of tax-qualified pension plans, which may in turn increase attendant funding obligations. The unfunded status of the pension obligations to be assumed by Georgia Gulf calculated on a projected benefit obligation basis as of December 31, 2011 was approximately \$80 million, of which the unfunded non-qualified pension liabilities to be assumed by Georgia Gulf were calculated to be approximately \$25 million as of December 31, 2011. The unfunded other post-retirement benefits obligations to be assumed by Georgia Gulf as of December 31, 2011 were approximately \$177 million. Georgia Gulf estimates that it will fund approximately \$20 million to \$25 million to the assumed pension and other post retirement benefit plans for the year ended December 31, 2013. Given the amount of pension assets transferred from the tax-qualified PPG pension plans to the new pension plans to be established by Georgia Gulf, and subject to the foregoing variables, and the uncertainties associated therewith, it is possible that Georgia Gulf could be required to make substantial contributions in future years to the new pension plans. These contributions could restrict available cash for Georgia Gulf s operations, capital expenditures and other requirements, and may materially adversely affect its financial condition and liquidity. Nonqualified pension liabilities to be assumed by Georgia Gulf are unfunded and no assets will be transferred by PPG to Georgia Gulf in respect of these liabilities. These obligations will require annual funding that could restrict cash available to Georgia Gulf for other purposes.

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

The principal post-retirement welfare benefit liabilities to be assumed by Georgia Gulf related to retirees associated with the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business are obligations to provide retiree health benefits. No assets will be transferred by PPG to Georgia Gulf in respect of these liabilities as these obligations are unfunded. The obligations to make payment with respect to these liabilities in the future may increase for several reasons, including, but not limited to, because of health care costs escalation. These obligations will require annual funding that could restrict cash available to Georgia Gulf for use for other purposes.

While Georgia Gulf intends to comply with any future funding obligations for its pension and post-retirement welfare benefit plans through the use of cash from operations, there can be no assurance that Georgia Gulf will generate enough cash to do so and also meet its other required or intended cash uses. Georgia Gulf s inability to fund these obligations through cash from operations could require it to seek funding from other sources, including through additional borrowings, which could materially increase Georgia Gulf s outstanding debt or debt service requirements.

#### Current Georgia Gulf stockholders ownership interest in Georgia Gulf will be substantially diluted in the Merger.

Following the consummation of the Merger, Georgia Gulf s stockholders will, in the aggregate, own a significantly smaller percentage of Georgia Gulf than they will own of Georgia Gulf immediately prior to the Merger. Following the consummation of the Merger, Georgia Gulf s stockholders immediately prior to the Merger are expected to collectively hold 49.5% of Georgia Gulf s common stock immediately after the Merger. Under limited circumstances described in the section of this document entitled The Merger Agreement Merger Consideration, pre-Merger Georgia Gulf stockholders could own less than 49.5% of Georgia Gulf common stock following the consummation of the Merger and under such circumstances, there is no minimum percentage of Georgia Gulf common stock that pre-Merger Georgia Gulf stockholders may own. Consequently, Georgia Gulf s stockholders, as a group, will be able to exercise less influence over the management and policies of Georgia Gulf following the Merger than they will exercise over the management and policies of Georgia Gulf immediately prior to the Merger.

#### Sales of Georgia Gulf common stock after the Transactions may negatively affect the market price of Georgia Gulf common stock.

The shares of Georgia Gulf common stock to be issued in the Transactions to holders of Splitco common stock will generally be eligible for immediate resale. The market price of Georgia Gulf common stock could decline as a result of sales of a large number of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the market after the consummation of the Transactions or even the perception that these sales could occur.

It is expected that immediately after consummation of the Merger, pre-Merger holders of Splitco common stock will hold 50.5% of Georgia Gulf s common stock and Georgia Gulf s existing stockholders will hold 49.5% of Georgia Gulf s common stock, subject to potential adjustment under limited circumstances as described in the section of this document entitled. The Merger Agreement Merger Consideration. Currently, PPG shareholders may include index funds that have performance tied to the Standard & Poor s 500 Index or other stock indices, and institutional investors subject to various investing guidelines. Because Georgia Gulf may not be included in these indices following the consummation of the Transactions or may not meet the investing guidelines of some of these institutional investors, these index funds and institutional investors may decide to or may be required to sell the Georgia Gulf common stock that they receive in the Transactions. In addition, the investment fiduciaries of PPG s defined contribution and defined benefit plans may decide to sell any Georgia Gulf common stock that the trusts for these plans receive in the Transactions, or may decide not to participate in the exchange offer, in response to their fiduciary obligations under applicable law. These sales, or the possibility that these sales may occur, may also make it more difficult for Georgia Gulf to obtain additional capital by selling equity securities in the future at a time and at a price that it deems appropriate.

32

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

The historical financial information of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business may not be representative of its results or financial condition if it had been operated independently of PPG and, as a result, may not be a reliable indicator of its future results.

The PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business is currently operated by PPG. Consequently, the financial information of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business included in this document has been derived from the consolidated financial statements and accounting records of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business and reflects all direct costs as well as assumptions and allocations made by management of PPG. The financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business presented may be different from those that would have resulted had the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business been operated independently of PPG during the applicable periods or at the applicable dates. For example, in preparing the financial statements of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business, PPG made allocations of costs and PPG corporate expenses deemed to be attributable to the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business. However, these costs and expenses reflect the costs and expenses attributable to the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business operated as part of a larger organization and do not necessarily reflect costs and expenses that would be incurred by the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business had it been operated independently. As a result, the historical financial information of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business may not be a reliable indicator of future results.

Georgia Gulf may be unable to provide the same types and level of benefits, services and resources to the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business that historically have been provided by PPG, or may be unable to provide them at the same cost.

As a separate reporting segment of PPG, the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business has been able to receive benefits and services from PPG and has been able to benefit from PPG s financial strength and extensive business relationships. After the Transactions, the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business will be owned by Georgia Gulf and will no longer benefit from PPG s resources. While Georgia Gulf expects to enter into an agreement under which PPG will agree to provide certain transition services for up to 24 months following the consummation of the Transactions, it cannot be assured that Georgia Gulf will be able to adequately replace those resources or replace them at the same cost. If Georgia Gulf is not able to replace the resources provided by PPG or is unable to replace them at the same cost or is delayed in replacing the resources provided by PPG, Georgia Gulf s results of operations may be materially adversely impacted.

Georgia Gulf s business, financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected following the Transactions if Georgia Gulf cannot negotiate terms that are as favorable as those PPG has received when Georgia Gulf replaces contracts after the closing of the Transactions.

Prior to consummation of the Transactions, certain functions (such as purchasing, information systems, sales, logistics and distribution) for the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business are generally being performed under PPG s centralized systems and, in some cases, under contracts that are also used for PPG s other businesses and which are not intended to be assigned to Georgia Gulf with the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business. In addition, some other contracts that PPG is a party to on behalf of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business require consents of third parties to assign them to Splitco. While PPG, under the Transition Services Agreement, will agree to provide Georgia Gulf with certain services, there can be no assurance that Georgia Gulf will be able to obtain those consents or negotiate terms that are as favorable as those PPG received when and if Georgia Gulf replaces these services with its own agreements for similar services. Although Georgia Gulf believes that it will be able to obtain any such consents or enter into new agreements for similar services, it is possible that the failure to replace a significant number of these agreements for any of these services could have a material adverse impact on Georgia Gulf following the Transactions.

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

If the Distribution, including the Debt Exchange, does not qualify as a tax-free transaction under Section 368(a)(1)(D) or 355 of the Code or the Merger does not qualify as a tax-free reorganization under Section 368(a) of the Code, including as a result of actions taken in connection with the Distribution or the Merger or as a result of subsequent acquisitions of shares of PPG, Georgia Gulf or Splitco common stock, then PPG and/or PPG shareholders may be required to pay substantial U.S. federal income taxes, and, in certain circumstances, Splitco and Georgia Gulf may be required to indemnify PPG for any such tax liability.

The consummation of the Transactions is conditioned on PPG s receipt of the Private Letter Ruling (as defined below in the section of this document entitled The Transactions Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Distribution and the Merger The Distribution ). The consummation of the Transactions is also conditioned on the receipt by PPG of the Distribution Tax Opinion and a Merger Tax Opinion (as defined below in the section of this document entitled The Transactions Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Distribution and the Merger The Merger ), and by Georgia Gulf of a Merger Tax Opinion.

Although a private letter ruling from the IRS generally is binding on the IRS, PPG and Splitco will not be able to rely on the Private Letter Ruling if the factual representations made to the IRS in connection with the request for the Private Letter Ruling are untrue or incomplete in any material respect, or if undertakings made to the IRS in connection with the request for the Private Letter Ruling have been violated. In addition, the opinions of counsel will be based on, among other things, the Private Letter Ruling as to the matters addressed by the ruling, current law and certain representations and assumptions as to factual matters made by PPG, Splitco, Georgia Gulf and Merger Sub. Any change in currently applicable law, which may-be retroactive, or the failure of any representation or assumption to be true, correct and complete in all material respects, could adversely affect the conclusions reached by counsel in the opinions. See The Transactions Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Distribution and the Merger.

Even if the Distribution were to otherwise qualify as a tax-free transaction under Sections 368(a)(1)(D) and 355 of the Code, the Distribution would be taxable to PPG (but not to PPG shareholders) pursuant to Section 355(e) of the Code if there is a 50% or greater change in ownership of either PPG or Splitco (including stock of Georgia Gulf after the Merger), directly or indirectly, as part of a plan or series of related transactions that include the Distribution. For this purpose, any acquisitions of PPG, Splitco or Georgia Gulf stock within the period beginning two years before the Distribution and ending two years after the Distribution are presumed to be part of such a plan, although PPG, Splitco or Georgia Gulf may be able to rebut that presumption. Further, for purposes of this test, the Merger will be treated as part of such a plan, but the Merger standing alone should not cause the Distribution to be taxable to PPG under Section 355(e) of the Code because pre-Merger holders of Splitco common stock will hold at least 50.5% of Georgia Gulf common stock immediately following the Merger. However, if the IRS were to determine that other acquisitions of PPG, Splitco or Georgia Gulf stock, either before or after the Distribution, were part of a plan or series of related transactions that included the Distribution, such determination could result in significant tax to PPG. In connection with the Private Letter Ruling and the Distribution Tax Opinion, PPG and Georgia Gulf have represented or will represent that the Distribution is not part of any such plan or series of related transactions.

In certain circumstances, under the Tax Matters Agreement, Splitco is (and Georgia Gulf, if applicable, will be) required to indemnify PPG against any taxes on the Distribution that arise as a result of certain actions or failures to act by Georgia Gulf or Splitco, any event (or series of events) after the Transactions involving the stock or assets of Splitco, or any breach by Georgia Gulf or, after the Transactions, Splitco of any representation or covenant made by them in the Tax Matters Agreement (a disqualifying action). If PPG were to recognize gain on the Distribution for reasons not related to a disqualifying action by Splitco or Georgia Gulf, PPG would not generally be entitled to be indemnified under the Tax Matters Agreement and the resulting tax to PPG could have a material adverse effect on PPG. In addition, in certain circumstances, under the Tax Matters Agreement, Splitco is (and Georgia Gulf will be) required to indemnify PPG against taxes on the Merger that arise as a result of a disqualifying action by Splitco or Georgia Gulf. If PPG were to recognize gain on the Merger for reasons not

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

related to a disqualifying action by Splitco or Georgia Gulf, PPG would generally not be entitled to indemnification by Splitco (or Georgia Gulf) under the Tax Matters Agreement. If Splitco (or Georgia Gulf, if applicable) is required to indemnify PPG if the Distribution or the Merger is taxable, this indemnification obligation would be substantial and could have a material adverse effect on Georgia Gulf, including with respect to its financial condition and results of operations.

Splitco and Georgia Gulf may be affected by significant restrictions following the Transactions in order to avoid significant tax-related liabilities.

The Tax Matters Agreement generally will prohibit Splitco, Georgia Gulf and their affiliates from taking certain actions that could cause the Distribution, the Merger and certain related transactions to fail to qualify as tax-free transactions. In particular, for a two-year period following the date of the Distribution, Splitco may not:

enter into any transaction or series of transactions (or any agreement, understanding or arrangement) as a result of which one or more persons would acquire (directly or indirectly) stock comprising 50% or more of the vote or value of Splitco (taking into account the stock of Splitco acquired pursuant to the Merger);

redeem or repurchase any stock or stock rights;

amend its certificate of incorporation or take any other action affecting the relative voting rights of its capital stock;

merge or consolidate with any other person (other than pursuant to the Merger);

take any other action that would, when combined with any other direct or indirect changes in ownership of Splitco capital stock (including pursuant to the Merger), have the effect of causing one or more persons to acquire stock comprising 50% or more of the vote or value of Splitco, or would reasonably be expected to adversely affect the tax-free status of the Transactions;

liquidate or partially liquidate;

discontinue the active conduct of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business; or

sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of assets (including stock of subsidiaries) that constitute more than 30% of the consolidated gross assets of Splitco and/or its subsidiaries (subject to exceptions for, among other things, ordinary course dispositions and repayments or prepayments of Splitco debt).

If Splitco (or Georgia Gulf, if applicable) intends to take any such restricted action, Splitco (or Georgia Gulf, if applicable) will be required to cooperate with PPG in obtaining a supplemental IRS ruling or an unqualified tax opinion reasonably acceptable to PPG to the effect that such action will not affect that status of the Distribution, the Merger and certain related transactions as tax-free transactions. However, if Splitco (or Georgia Gulf, if applicable) takes any of the actions above and such actions result in tax-related losses to PPG, then Splitco (or Georgia Gulf, if applicable) generally will be required to indemnify PPG for such losses, without regard to whether PPG has given Splitco prior consent. See Other Agreements Tax Matters Agreement.

Due to these restrictions and indemnification obligations under the Tax Matters Agreement, Georgia Gulf may be limited in its ability to pursue strategic transactions, equity or convertible debt financings or other transactions that may otherwise be in Georgia Gulf s best interests. Also, Georgia Gulf s potential indemnity obligation to PPG might discourage, delay or prevent a change of control during this two-year period that

Georgia Gulf stockholders may consider favorable to its ability to pursue strategic transactions, equity or convertible debt financings or other transactions that may otherwise be in Georgia Gulf  $\, s$  best interests.

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

Failure to consummate the Transactions could adversely impact the market price of Georgia Gulf s common stock as well as Georgia Gulf s business, financial condition and results of operations.

If the Transactions are not completed for any reason, the price of Georgia Gulf s common stock may decline. In addition, Georgia Gulf may be subject to additional risks, including:

depending on the reasons for and the timing of the termination of the Transaction Agreement, the requirement in the Transaction Agreement that Georgia Gulf pay PPG a termination fee of \$24.5 million or reimburse PPG for certain out-of-pocket costs relating to the Transactions:

substantial costs related to the Transactions, such as legal, accounting, regulatory filing, financial advisory and financial printing fees, which must be paid regardless of whether the Transactions are completed; and

potential disruption to the business of Georgia Gulf and distraction of its workforce and management team.

The Merger Agreement contains provisions that may discourage other companies from trying to acquire Georgia Gulf. In addition, Georgia Gulf will have more shares of its common stock outstanding after the Transactions, which may discourage other companies from trying to acquire Georgia Gulf.

The Merger Agreement contains provisions that may discourage a third-party from submitting a business combination proposal to Georgia Gulf prior to the closing of the Transactions that might result in greater value to Georgia Gulf stockholders than the Transactions. For example, the Merger Agreement generally prohibits Georgia Gulf from soliciting any takeover proposal. In addition, if the Merger Agreement is terminated by Georgia Gulf or PPG in circumstances that obligate Georgia Gulf to pay a termination fee or to reimburse transaction expenses to PPG, Georgia Gulf s liquidity or financial condition may be materially adversely affected as a result of such payment, and the requirement to make such a payment might deter third parties from proposing alternative business combination proposals. In addition, the Merger Agreement requires that Georgia Gulf seek stockholder approval for the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger, even if the Georgia Gulf board of directors changes its recommendation regarding the issuance of shares of Georgia Gulf common stock in the Merger.

Georgia Gulf expects to issue approximately 35,236,010 shares of its common stock as part of the Transactions. Because Georgia Gulf will be a significantly larger company and have significantly more shares of its common stock outstanding after the Transactions, an acquisition of Georgia Gulf may become more expensive. As a result, some companies may not seek to acquire Georgia Gulf, and the reduction in potential parties that may seek to acquire Georgia Gulf could negatively impact the prices at which Georgia Gulf s common stock trades.

#### Other Risks that Relate to Georgia Gulf, Including the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business After the Transactions

The chemicals industry is cyclical, seasonal and volatile, experiencing alternating periods of tight supply and overcapacity, and the building products industry is also cyclical and seasonal. This cyclicality adversely impacts Georgia Gulf s capacity utilization and causes fluctuations in Georgia Gulf s results of operations.

Georgia Gulf s historical operating results for its chemical businesses have tended to reflect the cyclical and volatile nature of the chemicals industry. Georgia Gulf expects to continue to be subject to the cyclicality and volatility following the consummation of the Transactions. Historically, periods of tight supply of commodity chemicals have resulted in increased prices and profit margins thereon, and have been followed by periods of substantial capacity increase, resulting in oversupply and declining prices and profit margins for those products. A number of Georgia Gulf s chemical products are and will remain highly dependent on markets that are particularly cyclical, such as the building and construction, paper and pulp, and automotive markets. The chlor-alkali industry is also cyclical, both as a result of changes in demand for each of chlorine and caustic soda and as a result of changes in manufacturing capacity, and prices for both products respond rapidly to changes in supply

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

Transactions;

and demand conditions in the industry. The chlor-alkali industry experiences its highest level of activity during the spring and summer months. The first and fourth quarter demand in the chlor-alkali industry usually reflects a decrease in construction and water treatment activity due mainly to weather patterns in those periods. As a result of changes in demand for Georgia Gulf s products, its operating rates and earnings fluctuate significantly, not only from year to year, but also from quarter to quarter, depending on factors such as feedstock costs, transportation costs, and supply and demand for the product produced at the facility during that period. In order to compensate for changes in demand, Georgia Gulf has historically operated individual facilities below or above rated capacities in any period, and Georgia Gulf expects to continue this practice in the future. Georgia Gulf may idle a facility for an extended period of time because an oversupply of a certain product or a lack of demand for that product makes production uneconomical. Facility shutdown and subsequent restart expenses may adversely affect periodic results when these events occur. In addition, a temporary shutdown may become permanent, resulting in a write-down or write-off of the related assets. Industry-wide capacity expansions or the announcement of such expansions have generally led to a decline in the pricing of Georgia Gulf s chemical products in the affected product line. Following the completion of the Transactions, Georgia Gulf expects that it may be required to take similar actions in the future in response to cyclical conditions. Georgia Gulf cannot provide any assurances that future growth in product demand will be sufficient to utilize any additional capacity.

In addition, the cyclical and seasonal nature of the building products industry, which is significantly affected by changes in national and local economic and other conditions such as employment levels, demographic trends, availability of financing, interest rates and consumer confidence, could negatively affect the demand for and pricing of Georgia Gulf s building products. For example, if interest rates increase, the ability of prospective buyers to finance purchases of home improvement products and invest in new real estate could be adversely affected, which, in turn, could adversely affect Georgia Gulf s financial performance. In response to the significant decline in the market for Georgia Gulf s building and home improvement products beginning in 2008, Georgia Gulf has closed facilities and sold certain businesses and assets and continues to monitor cost control initiatives. In the near-term, it is unclear whether demand for these products will return and stabilize or whether demand for Georgia Gulf s building products will further decline.

The integration of Georgia Gulf and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Businesses may not be successful or the anticipated benefits from the Transactions may not be realized.

After consummation of the Transactions, Georgia Gulf will have significantly more sales, assets and employees than it did prior to the Transactions. The integration process will require Georgia Gulf to expend significant capital and significantly expand the scope of its operations and financial systems. Georgia Gulf s management will be required to devote a significant amount of time and attention to the process of integrating the operations of Georgia Gulf s business and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business. There is a significant degree of difficulty and management involvement inherent in that process. These difficulties include:

integrating the operations of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business while carrying on the ongoing operations of Georgia Gulf's business;

managing a significantly larger company than before consummation of the Transactions;

the possibility of faulty assumptions underlying Georgia Gulf's expectations regarding the integration process;

coordinating a greater number of diverse businesses and businesses located in a greater number of geographic locations;

integrating two separate business cultures, which may prove to be incompatible;

attracting and retaining the necessary personnel associated with the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business following the

creating uniform standards, controls, procedures, policies and information systems and controlling the costs associated with such matters; and

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

integrating information, purchasing, accounting, finance, sales, billing, payroll and regulatory compliance systems. There is no assurance that the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business will be successfully or cost-effectively integrated into Georgia Gulf. The process of integrating the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business into Georgia Gulf s operations may cause an interruption of, or loss of momentum in, the activities of Georgia Gulf s business after consummation of the Transactions. If Georgia Gulf management is not able to effectively manage the integration process, or if any significant business activities are interrupted as a result of the integration process, Georgia Gulf s business could suffer and its liquidity, results of operations and financial condition may be materially adversely impacted.

All of the risks associated with the integration process could be exacerbated by the fact that Georgia Gulf may not have a sufficient number of employees with the requisite expertise to integrate the businesses or to operate Georgia Gulf s business after the Transactions. If Georgia Gulf does not hire or retain employees with the requisite skills and knowledge to run Georgia Gulf after the Transactions, it may have a material adverse effect on Georgia Gulf s business.

Even if Georgia Gulf is able to successfully combine the two business operations, it may not be possible to realize the full benefits of the increased sales volume and other benefits, including the expected synergies, that are expected to result from the Transactions, or realize these benefits within the time frame that is expected. For example, the elimination of duplicative costs may not be possible or may take longer than anticipated, or the benefits from the Transactions may be offset by costs incurred or delays in integrating the companies. If Georgia Gulf fails to realize the benefits it anticipates from the acquisition, Georgia Gulf s liquidity, results of operations or financial condition may be adversely affected.

Georgia Gulf s operations and assets are and will continue to be subject to extensive environmental, health and safety laws and regulations; the costs associated with compliance with these regulations could materially adversely affect Georgia Gulf s financial condition and results of operations, and the failure to comply could expose Georgia Gulf to material liabilities.

Georgia Gulf s operations and assets are, and are expected to continue to be, subject to extensive environmental, health and safety regulation, including laws and regulations related to air emissions, water discharges, waste disposal and remediation of contaminated sites, at both the national and local levels in the U.S. Georgia Gulf is also subject to similar laws and regulations in Canada and, after consummation of the Transactions, expects to be subject to similar regulations in other jurisdictions. The nature of the chemical and building products industries exposes, and is expected to continue to expose, Georgia Gulf to risks of liability under these laws and regulations due to the production, storage, use, transportation and sale of materials that can cause contamination or personal injury, including, in the case of commodity chemicals, potential releases into the environment. Environmental laws may have a significant effect on the costs of use, transportation and storage of raw materials and finished products, as well as the costs of the storage and disposal of wastes. Georgia Gulf has and will continue to incur substantial operating and capital costs to comply with environmental laws and regulations. In addition, Georgia Gulf may incur substantial costs, including fines, damages, criminal or civil sanctions and remediation costs, or experience interruptions in its operations for violations arising under these laws and regulations.

For example, some environmental laws, such as the federal Superfund statute, impose joint and several liability for the cost of investigations and remedial actions on any company that generated, arranged for disposal of or transported waste to a disposal site, or selected or presently or formerly owned or operated a disposal site or a site otherwise contaminated by hazardous substances. A number of environmental liabilities have been associated with Georgia Gulf s facilities at Lake Charles, Louisiana that Georgia Gulf acquired as part of its acquisition of the vinyls business of CONDEA Vista Company (CONDEA Vista, which is now known as Sasol North America, Inc.) and which may be designated as Superfund sites. Although CONDEA Vista retained

38

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

financial responsibility for certain environmental liabilities that relate to the acquired facilities that arose before the closing of the acquisition in November 1999, there can be no assurance that CONDEA Vista will be able to satisfy its obligations in this regard, particularly in light of the long period of time in which environmental liabilities may arise under the environmental laws. If CONDEA Vista fails to fulfill its obligations regarding these environmental liabilities, then Georgia Gulf could be held responsible. Furthermore, Georgia Gulf severally is responsible for, and does not have indemnification for, any environmental liabilities arising from certain other acquisitions, including several liabilities resulting from Royal Group s operations prior to Georgia Gulf s acquisition of that company.

In connection with the consummation of the Transactions, Georgia Gulf will acquire a significant additional number of properties and amount of assets, which could materially increase Georgia Gulf s compliance costs and exposure to liabilities. The properties and assets associated with the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business are subject to similar environmental health and safety laws and regulations, as are the properties and assets of Georgia Gulf, which could require or result in significant additional capital expenditures in future periods. For example, the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business could be responsible for, and is engaged in discussing with various parties regarding an allocation of costs relating to certain environmental remediation plans at the Calcasieu River Estuary in Lake Charles, Louisiana. These costs could be material and, if incurred, would be expected to be incurred following the consummation of the Transactions. Further, PPG has recently settled with the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality alleged violations of PPG s Lake Charles facility s air permit relating to the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business. The settlement calls for a cash payment of \$400,000 and the performance of Beneficial Environmental Projects expected to cost \$220,000. In connection with the Transactions, this settlement is a liability of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business.

Separately, the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business s facility in Natrium, West Virginia is subject to a number of environmental uncertainties. This facility discharges wastewater into the Ohio River pursuant to a permit issued by the West Virginia Department of Environmental Protection. Because it discharges into the Ohio River, this facility s permit terms must conform to pollution control standards for the Ohio River set by the Ohio River Valley Water Sanitation Commission (ORSANCO). ORSANCO has adopted certain water quality standards that prohibit, as of October 16, 2013, the use of a mixing zone as used by, among others, the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business, to meet these pollution control standards. PPG, on behalf of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business, submitted a request for a variance from this prohibition and to allow for the continued use of a mixing zone for mercury for the life of the permit, and for any subsequent permits. On October 12, 2012, ORSANCO granted PPG s request for a variance which will allow the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business to continue to have a mixing zone for its discharge of mercury for a five-year period after ORSANCO s prohibition on mixing zones takes effect on October 16, 2013. In addition, this facility operates a coal-fired power plant that it is currently anticipated may require capital expenditures in the range of \$15-30 million in order to remain in compliance with the requirements of certain final regulations expected to be issued by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (the EPA) in 2012 relating to emissions standards for large and small boilers and incinerators that burn solid waste, known as Boiler maximum achievable control technology (MACT) regulations. No assurances as to the timing or content of the Boiler MACT regulations can be provided, and any final regulations may require the incurrence of significant additional costs beyond those currently anticipated.

As of September 30, 2012, the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business had reserves for environmental contingencies totaling \$33 million of which \$5 million was classified as a current liability.

For additional information on the potential environmental liabilities associated with the properties and assets of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business, including the expected timing and costs of actions related thereto, see the section of this document entitled Information on the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business Regulation and Environmental Matters and Legal Proceedings.

In addition, due to the nature of environmental laws, regulations and liabilities, it is possible that the reviews Georgia Gulf conducted in connection with its evaluation of, and determination to enter into, the Transactions,

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

may not have identified all potentially adverse conditions. Such conditions may not presently exist or be detectable through reasonable methods, or may not be able to be adequately valued. For example, the PPG Chlor-alkali and Chemical Business s facility in Natrium, West Virginia has been in operation for over 65 years. There may be significant latent liabilities or future claims arising from the operation of a facility of this age, and Georgia Gulf may be required to incur material future remediation or other costs in connection with future actions or developments at this or other facilities.

Georgia Gulf expects to be continually subjected to increasingly stringent environmental and health and safety laws and regulations and that continued compliance will require increased capital expenditures and increased operating costs, or may impose restrictions on Georgia Gulf s present or future operations. It is difficult to predict the future interpretation and development of these laws and regulations or their impact on Georgia Gulf s future earnings and operations. Georgia Gulf s policy is to accrue costs relating to environmental matters when it is probable that these costs will be required and can be reasonably estimated. Any increase in these costs, or any material restrictions, could materially adversely affect Georgia Gulf s liquidity, financial condition and results of operations. However, estimated costs for future environmental compliance and remediation may be materially lower than actual costs, or Georgia Gulf may not be able to quantify potential costs in advance. Actual costs related to any environmental compliance in excess of estimated costs could have a material adverse effect on Georgia Gulf s financial condition in one or more future periods.

Recent heightened interest in environmental-related issues could require Georgia Gulf to incur significant compliance costs or result in material operating restrictions.

Heightened interest in environmental regulation, such as climate change issues, have the potential to materially impact Georgia Gulf s costs and present and future operations. Georgia Gulf, and other chemicals companies, are currently required to file certain governmental reports relating to greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. The U.S. Government has considered, and may in the future implement, restrictions or other controls on GHG emissions which could require Georgia Gulf, including, following the consummation of the Merger, the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business, to incur significant capital expenditures or further restrict Georgia Gulf s present or future operations.

In addition to GHG regulations, the EPA has recently taken certain actions to limit or control certain pollutants created by companies such as Georgia Gulf and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business. For example, in February 2012, the EPA issued its final rule to update emissions limits for air toxins from polyvinyl chloride and copolymers production (PVC production). The rule, known as the National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Polyvinyl Chloride and Copolymers Production, establishes new, more stringent emission standards for certain regulated hazardous air pollutants, including vinyl chloride monomer. The rule sets MACT standards for major sources of PVC production and establishes certain working practices, as well as monitoring, reporting and record-keeping requirements. Existing sources that become subject to these requirements would have three years from the effectiveness of the rule to come into compliance. Following the publication of the rule in the Federal Register, legal challenges were filed by the vinyl industry s trade organization, several vinyl manufacturers, and several environmental groups, which will likely impact provisions of a final rule. Although Georgia Gulf has conducted a preliminary evaluation of the potential impact of a final rule on its operations, the preliminary evaluation was based on the final rule as it currently exists, as well as a number of assumptions concerning the equipment and process changes that would be necessary to come into compliance with the existing final rule. There could be significant changes from the currently existing rule to the final rule after all legal challenges have been exhausted.

Following the consummation of the Transactions, Georgia Gulf expects that its business and operations will also be subject to pending environmental regulations impacting the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business. For example, in March 2011, the EPA proposed amendments to the national emission standards for hazardous air pollutants for mercury emissions from mercury cell chlor-alkali plants known as the Mercury MACT regulations. These proposed amendments would require improvements in work practices to reduce fugitive emissions and

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

would result in reduced levels of mercury emissions while still allowing the mercury cell facilities to continue to operate. The PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business currently operates a cell production unit at its Natrium, West Virginia facility, which constitutes approximately 4% of the PPG Chemical Business s total chlor-alkali production capacity. No assurances as to the timing or content of the final rule, or its ultimate impact on Georgia Gulf, can be provided.

Separately, the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business s Natrium, West Virginia facility currently discharges wastewater into the Ohio River pursuant to a National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit issued by the West Virginia Department of Environmental Protection (WVDEP). Because it discharges into the Ohio River, the wastewater permit terms must conform to pollution control standards for the Ohio River set by ORSANCO. ORSANCO has adopted an ambient water column standard criterion for mercury in the Ohio River and, in 2009, ORSANCO adopted certain standards that prohibit as of October 16, 2013, the use of a mixing zone as used by, among others, the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business, to meet these standards for certain bioaccumulative chemicals, including mercury. In September 2011, PPG, on behalf of the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business, requested continued use of a mixing zone for mercury through the life of its current permit, which is valid through January 2014, and for any subsequent permits. On October 12, 2012, ORSANCO granted PPG s request for a variance which will allow the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business to continue to have a mixing zone for its discharge of mercury for a five-year period after ORSANCO s prohibition on mixing zones takes effect on October 16, 2013.

Also in March 2011, the EPA issued emissions standards for large and small boilers and incinerators that burn solid waste, known as the Boiler MACT regulations. These regulations are aimed at controlling emissions of toxic air contaminants. As a result of numerous petitions from both industry and environmental groups, the EPA reconsidered its March 2011 final rule. On December 23, 2011, the EPA is proposed rule reconsidering its March 2011 final rule was published in the Federal Register. The EPA has indicated its intent to issue the final regulations in 2012 requiring that covered facilities achieve compliance within three years. The 115 megawatt coal fired power plant at the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business is Natrium, West Virginia facility would be the source most significantly impacted by the Boiler MACT regulations. The PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business continues to evaluate alternative paths of either retrofitting the Natrium boilers to burn natural gas or to engineer and install pollution control equipment. No assurances as to the timing or content of the final rule, or its ultimate impact on Georgia Gulf, can be provided.

The potential impact of these and/or unrelated future, legislative or regulatory actions on Georgia Gulf s current or future operations cannot be predicted at this time but could be significant. Such impacts could include the potential for significant compliance costs, including capital expenditures, could result in operating restrictions or could require Georgia Gulf to incur significant legal or other costs related to compliance or other activities. Any increase in the costs related to these initiatives, or restrictions on Georgia Gulf s operations, could materially adversely affect Georgia Gulf s liquidity, financial condition or results of operations.

Natural gas, electricity, fuel and raw materials costs, and other external factors beyond Georgia Gulf s control, as well as changes in the level of activity in the home repair and remodeling and new home construction sectors of the economy, can cause wide fluctuations in Georgia Gulf s margins.

The cost of Georgia Gulf s natural gas, electricity, fuel and raw materials may not correlate with changes in the prices Georgia Gulf receives for its products, either in the direction of the price change or in absolute magnitude. Natural gas and raw materials costs represent, and will continue to represent, a substantial part of Georgia Gulf s and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business s manufacturing costs, and energy costs, in particular electricity and fuel, represent a component of the costs to manufacture building products. Following the consummation of the Merger, a \$1.00 change in the price of natural gas per British Thermal Unit (BTU) could raise or lower Georgia Gulf s operating costs by approximately \$60 million to \$80 million per year. Most of the raw materials Georgia Gulf uses are commodities and the price of each can fluctuate widely for a variety

#### **Index to Financial Statements**

of reasons, including changes in availability because of capacity additions or facility operating problems. For example, ethylene is a key raw material used by both Georgia Gulf and the PPG Chlor-alkali and Derivatives Business. During 2011, costs for ethylene increased substantially compared to 2010 driven by a combination of tight supplies due to production outages and increased global demand, particularly in U.S. exports of ethylene derivative products. Other external factors beyond Georgia Gulf s control can cause volatility in raw materials prices, demand for Georgia Gulf s products, product prices, sales volumes and margins. These factors include general economic conditions, the level of business activity in the industries that use Georgia Gulf s products, competitors actions, international events and circumstances, and governmental regulation in the United States and abroad. These factors can also magnify the impact of economic cycles on Georgia Gulf s business. While Georgia Gulf attempts to pass through price increases in energy costs and raw materials, Georgia Gulf has been unsuccessful in doing so in some circumstances in the past and there can be no assurance that it will be able to successfully do so in the future.

Additionally, Georgia Gulf s business is and will continue to be impacted by changes in the North American home repair and remodeling sectors, as well as the new construction sector, which may be significantly affected by changes in economic and other conditions such as gross domestic product levels, employment levels, demographic trends, consumer confidence, increases in interest rates and availability of consumer financing for home repair and remodeling projects as well as availability of financing for new home purchases. These factors can lower the demand for and pricing of Georgia Gulf s products, while Georgia Gulf may not be able to reduce its costs by an equivalent amount, which alone or in combination could cause Georgia Gulf s net sales and net income to materially decrease and, among other things, could require Georgia Gulf to recognize impairments of its assets.

## Hazards associated with manufacturing may adversely affect Georgia Gulf s business or results of operations.

There are a number of hazards associated with chemical manufacturing and building products manufacturing in Georgia Gulf s current operations, as well as in the use, storage and transportation of related raw materials, products and wastes. These hazards will be magnified in connection with the expansion of Georgia Gulf s operations as a result of the consummation of the Transactions. The occurrence of any such hazard could lead to an interruption or suspension of operations and have a material adverse effect on the productivity and profitability of a particular manufacturing facility or on Georgia Gulf s operations as a whole. These hazards include: